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WASHINGTON STATE HOUSING FINANCE COMMISSION
COMMISSION WORK SESSION AGENDA

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that the Washington State Housing Finance Commission will
hold a Work Session on Thursday, November 18, 2021, at 11:00 a.m., to consider the items in
the agenda below.

Per the Governor’s proclamation regarding the Open Public Meetings Act and Public Records

Act (Proclamation 20-28) and due to extraordinary public-health circumstances related to the

ongoing COVID-19 (coronavirus) outbreak, participation in this meeting will only be offered
virtually.

Meeting materials may be supplemented and updated as necessary up to the time of the meeting.
For the most up to date versions, please refer to the materials posted on the Commission’s
Meetings and Hearings page, http://wshfc.org/admin/meetings.htm

To join virtually, please go to www.zoom.us, go to “Join a Meeting,” and enter:

Webinar/Meeting ID: 826 4467 4718
Passcode: 862040

Participants who wish to participate telephonically, please dial either: 1-(888) 788-0099 or
1-(877) 853-5247 U.S. toll-free

Participants wishing to provide public comments, please see public engagement
opportunities on page two below for instructions.

I. RJET/Steve Walker: Presentation updating board on ongoing social justice and racial
equity efforts this year and discussion of proposal to adopt Commission Racial Equity
Values (30 min.)

II.  Lisa Vatske: Discussion of a proposal to partner with Sound Transit and a pilot bond cap
set-aside. (20 min.)

III. Diane Klontz: Informational Report on Department of Commerce Activities (if time
allows)

IV. Steve Walker: Executive Director’s Report (if time allows)

Note: There will be a break after the conclusion of the Work Session. The Commission
Meeting will reconvene at 1 p.m.
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Public Engagement at Commission Meetings
All Board meetings of the Washington State Housing Finance Commission are open to the public. Our
intention is to welcome all members of the public and to provide a clear and reasonable process through

which they can share their thoughts with us.

Different ways to Join a Commission Meeting:

1. Click here to go to the meeting directly

2. At www.zoom.us, go to “Join a Meeting,” and enter:
e Webinar/Meeting ID: 826 4467 4718
e Passcode: 862040

3. To participate by phone, dial toll-free either: 1-(888)-788-0099 or 1-(877)-853-5247.

During Meetings:

During Commission board work sessions and board meetings, attendees can see and hear all
presentations and business taking place. Microphones will be turned off except to receive comment
during public hearings and the public general comment period.

Public Hearings:

Commission meetings often include public hearings for specific housing projects or other policy
decisions. Please limit comments to those directly related to the public hearing topic.

Public Comment:

e Purpose of Public Comment
During this period, the Commissioners listen to public concerns and comments but do not
generally engage in dialogue. Staff will follow up with commenters who request assistance or
answers to questions, providing that contact information is shared. Anyone who wishes to speak
during the public comment period can take this opportunity.

e  When to Comment
The public comment period takes place near the end of the afternoon Commission board meeting
(not the morning work session). The starting time for the public comment period depends on the
length of the Commission’s other business. Typically, the public comment period is reached after
about an hour (2 p.m.) but may be sooner or later.

e Raising Your Hand in Zoom or Through Phone Participation
To give us a sense of the number of people wishing to speak and help us call on you in an orderly
fashion, the meeting Chair will ask you to use the Zoom “raise hand” feature to indicate you would
like to speak. People participating on the telephone can press *9 to virtually “raise a hand.”
Whether or not you are able to virtually raise a hand, the chair will provide time and opportunity
for all to share their comments before closing the public comment period.

¢ Timing of Comments:
We ask that speakers keep their comments brief (2 to 3 minutes). The chair may ask you to begin
bringing your statement to a close after that time, especially if others are waiting to speak. Our
intention is not to impose a specific time limit unless it seems necessary to give a large number of
speakers an equal chance to share their comments.
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WASHINGTON STATE HOUSING FINANCE COMMISSION
COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that the Washington State Housing Finance Commission will
hold a Special Meeting on Thursday, November 18, 2021, at 1:00 p.m., to consider the items in
the agenda below.

Per the Governor’s proclamation regarding the Open Public Meetings Act and Public Records

Act (Proclamation 20-28) and due to extraordinary public-health circumstances related to the

ongoing COVID-19 (coronavirus) outbreak, participation in this meeting will only be offered
virtually.

Meeting materials may be supplemented and updated as necessary up to the time of the meeting.
For the most up to date versions, please refer to the materials posted on the Commission’s
Meetings and Hearings page, http://wshfc.org/admin/meetings.htm

To join virtually, please go to www.zoom.us, go to “Join a Meeting,” and enter:

Webinar/Meeting ID: 826 4467 4718
Passcode: 862040

Participants who wish to participate telephonically, please dial either: 1-(888) 788-0099 or
1-(877) 853-5247 U.S. toll-free

Participants wishing to provide public comments, please see public engagement
opportunities on page two above for instructions.

I. Chair: Approval of the Minutes from the October 28, 2021, Special Meeting. 1
(5 min.)

II.  Chair: Conduct a Public Hearing on the following:

A. Madison at River’s Edge, OID # 21-93A 2
Claire Petersky: The proposed issuance of one or more series of tax-exempt
revenue bonds to finance a portion of the costs for the acquisition of an
existing 120-unit multifamily housing facility located at 1741 22" Street NE,
Auburn, WA 98002, to be owned by AOF/Pacific Affordable Corp., a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation and an organization described
under section 501(c)(3). Proceeds of the bonds may also be used to pay all or
a portion of the costs of issuing the bonds. The total estimated bond amount is
not expected to exceed $42,000,000. (7 min.)

B. Elizabeth Thomas Homes, OID # 21-80A
Claire Petersky: The proposed issuance of one or mores series of tax-exempt
revenue bonds to finance a portion of the costs for the new construction of a
119-unit multifamily housing facility located at 4524 S. Henderson Street,

T
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Seattle, WA 98118, to be owned by Elizabeth Thomas Homes LLC, a
Washington limited liability company. Proceeds of the bonds may also be
used to pay all or a portion of the costs of issuing the bonds. The total
estimated bond amount is not expected to exceed $27,000,000, (7 min.)

Grata at Totem Lake 4%, OID # 20-78A

Claire Petersky: The proposed issuance of one or mores series of tax-exempt
revenue bonds to finance a portion of the costs for the new construction of a
125-unit multifamily housing facility located at 12410 NE Totem Lake Way,
Kirkland, WA 98034, to be owned by Kirkland TWG LLLP, a Washington
limited liability limited partnership. Proceeds of the bonds may also be used
to pay all or a portion of the costs of issuing the bonds. The total estimated
bond amount is not expected to exceed $37,000,000. (7 min.)

Linden, OID # 21-36A

Claire Petersky: The proposed issuance of one or more series of tax-exempt
revenue notes to finance a portion of the costs for the new construction and
equipping of a 200-unit multifamily housing facility located at 916 N. 143
Street, Seattle, WA 98133, to be owned by Bellwether Linden LLLP, a
Washington limited liability limited partnership. Proceeds of the notes may
also be used to pay all or a portion of the costs of issuing the notes. The total
estimated note amount is not expected to exceed $60,000,000. (7 min.)

Midvale Village, OID # 21-81A

Claire Petersky: The proposed issuance of one or more series of tax-exempt
and/or taxable revenue notes to finance a portion of the costs for the
acquisition, construction and equipping of a 210-unit multifamily housing
facility located at 1117 North 183" Street, Shoreline, WA 98133, to be owned
by Midvale Village, LP, a to-be-formed Washington limited partnership.
Proceeds of the notes may also be used to pay all or a portion of the costs of

issuing the notes. The total estimated note amount is not expected to exceed
$55,000,000. (7 min.)

III.  Consider and Act on the Following Action Items:

A.

Resolution No. 21-100, HopeSource III Rural Preservation Portfolio, OID
#19-122A-G

Lisa Vatske: A resolution approving the issuance of one or more series of
tax-exempt revenue bonds to finance a portion of the costs for the acquisition
and rehabilitation of seven multifamily housing facilities, in Grant and
Yakima counties, with an aggregate total of 190 housing units, to be owned by
HopeSource III Rural Preservation Associates LLLP, a Washington limited
liability limited partnership. The addresses and units are listed below.
Proceeds of the bonds may also be used to pay all or a portion of the costs of
issuing the bonds. The total estimated aggregate bond amount is not expected
to exceed $20,000,000. The public hearing was held August 26, 2021. (5
min.)
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Project: HopeSource III Rural Preservation Portfolio

Project Addresses, Units, and Estimated Chestnut Grove Apartments
Maximum Bond Amount per Project: 610 South Chestnut Street
Moses Lake, WA 98837

23 units

$2,300,000

Edison Park Apartments
2400 East Edison Avenue
Sunnyside, WA 98944

28 units

$3,000,000

Paragon Apartments
1320 South 11th Street
Sunnyside, WA 98944
36 units

$3,800,000

Valley Commons 1 & 2 Apartments
700 - 725 McClain Drive
Sunnyside, WA 98944

51 units

$5,400,000

Vineyard 1 & 2 Apartments
405 Nicka Road and 810 Grandridge Road
Grandview, WA 98930

52 units
$5,500,000

B. Resolution No. 21-96, Nesbit Family Housing, OID # 21-38A 8
Lisa Vatske: A resolution approving the issuance of one or more series of
tax-exempt and/or taxable revenue bonds to finance a portion of the costs for
the acquisition, construction and equipping of a 104-unit multifamily facility
located at 8700 Aurora Avenue N., Seattle, WA 98103, to be owned by Nesbit
Development LLLP, a Washington limited liability limited partnership.

Proceeds of the bonds may also be used to pay all or a portion of the costs of

issuing the bonds. The total estimated bond amount is not expected to exceed
$21,000,000. The public hearing was held September 23, 2021. (5 min.)

C. Motion to consider approval of Commission Racial Equity Values 9
Bill Rumpf/Steve Walker: Consider adoption of Racial Equity Values (10
min.)
IVv. Informational Report on Department of Commerce Activities (10 min.)
V. Executive Director’s Report (10 min.)




VI Commissioners’ Reports (10 min.)
VII.  Chair: Consent Agenda (5 min.)

A. Homeownership & Homebuyer Education Programs Monthly Activities
Report

B. Multifamily Housing and Community Facilities Monthly Activities
Report

C. Asset Management and Compliance Monthly Activities Report
D. Financial Statements as of October 31, 2021

VIII. Chair: Miscellaneous Correspondence and Articles of Interest (5 min.)
A. Miscellaneous Correspondence and Articles of Interest
B. HFC Events Calendar

IX. Chair: Public Comment

X. Executive Session (if necessary)
XII. Adjourn

Bill Rumpf, Chair
Consent Agenda items will only be discussed at the request of a Commissioner.
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HOUSING FINANCE Chair
COMMISSION Mr. Steve Walker

Executive Director

' l WASHINGTON STATE Mr. Bill Rumpf

Memorandum
To: Commissioners
From: Lisa Vatske
CC: Steve Walker
Date: November 11, 2021
Re: Proposed Bond Cap alighment and set-aside for Sound Transit sites

Opportunity and Impact

RCW 81.112.350 and Sound Transit’s Equitable TOD Policy direct Sound Transit to support the
development of affordable housing by offering at least 80% of Sound Transit surplus property
(unless certain exceptions apply) that is suitable for development as housing first to local
jurisdictions, housing authorities, and non-profit developers for the creation of affordable
housing. Sound Transit has identified at least five to seven sites with the potential of the
creation of 800-1200 units that could be developed in the next six years. This represents a
significant need for leverage and financing for this to come to fruition.

A long-standing value and part of the ongoing discussions regarding priority for bond cap, is the
need to have developments located near transit. Discussions with Sound Transit staff,
stakeholders and public funders have identified the considerable number of resources that will
be needed to align to ensure there is equitable and affordable development at these sites. The
need and opportunity to provide predictability, lower costs and align the financing as early in
the process as possible is at the core of this proposal. This also helps to inform, address, and
reduce disruption to the ongoing competitive pipeline.

Proposal

In coordination and through an MOU, staff is proposing to “set-aside” up to $200 million of
bond cap allocation over a five-year period. Bond cap would be “reserved” as part of the RFP
process for each of the sites and then accessed or utilized on a rolling basis later upon the
financing closing. This would be managed like how the Housing Authority and PDA allocation is
handled. Projects are on a list and get an allocation based on readiness and ability to proceed
to closing. No more than half of the allocation would be available in any one year. Although




there are already two sites that have been solicitated and developers determined, there is a
schedule of upcoming solicitations in the next several years, that Commission staff would be
included in. All projects will need to meet the threshold bond cap criteria.

Current site criteria include:

e Within the Sound Transit geographic boundaries which currently include King and
Snohomish, with potential for expansion into Pierce.

e Construction starts between 2023 and 2026

e Y mile from the transit station

e Locations where the local jurisdiction is already supportive of affordable housing and
there are multiple pads available for the build out of affordable housing

e Significantly discounted land and lower developer provided infrastructure is being
leveraged

Although this proposal is being designated for Sound Transit sites only at this time, this
opportunity could be expanded in the future to other jurisdictions that could meet the criteria
and represent a significant investment of public infrastructure investment.

This proposal seeks to support the following outcomes:

e Provide a strategic and intentional path to advance state, regional and local policies and
investments that prioritize affordable housing on public land and near transit

e Provide certainty for developers and expedite projects by alignment of resources and
staging of development as part of the RFP process

e Create additional leveraging opportunities by demonstrating public sector commitment

Next steps:

A discussion and presentation with Sound Transit staff is scheduled for the November work
session. Language is being drafted in the form of an MOU between the Commission and Sound
Transit, with the intent of bringing an item to the December meeting to take action to authorize
the Executive Director to enter into this agreement.




UMPQUA
B-A-N-K

November 16, 2021

The Commissioners

cl/o Steve Walker, Executive Director
Washington State Housing Finance Commission
1000 Second Avenue, Suite 2700

Seattle, WA 98104-1046

Re: Washington State Housing Finance Commission Multifamily Housing Revenue
Bond (Nesbit Family Housing Project), Series 2021 (the "Bond")

Dear Honorable Commissioners:

Umpqua Bank, an Oregon state-chartered bank ("Lender"), is pleased to offer to
purchase the above-referenced Bond in an principal amount of up to $20,800,000, ata
price of par, with the understanding that the purchase proceeds will be used by the
Commission to purchase a loan being originated by Lender to Nesbit Development
LLLP, a Washington limited liability limited partnership (the "Borrower").

The Bond will be dated the date of closing, anticipated to be November 23, 2021, and
will mature as set forth in the loan documents. Principal in the amount of $20,800,000
on the Bond will accrue interest at a floating rate per annum of 1.95% in excess of the
30-day average Secured Overnight Financing Rate with a floor rate of 2.45%, subject to
adjustment from time to time pursuant to the loan documents. Upon satisfaction of the
conditions to conversion set forth in the Loan Documents, on the conversion date a
portion of the Bond will be repaid and thereafter the Bond is expected to accrue interest
at a fixed rate to be set prior to closing, subject to adjustment from time to time pursuant
to the Loan Documents.

Lender's offer is subject to a legal opinion from Pacifica Law Group LLP of Seattle,
Washington, acceptable to Lender, to the receipt of approval from all other parties

providing funds for the project, and to the other conditions set forth in the draft loan
documents most recently circulated by Lender's counsel.

Very truly yours,
UMPQUA BANK

iy, 0%

Grace Chang, Vice President

214703-0030/4874-9780-1987.2



'v‘ WASHINGTON STATE Bill Rumpf
‘ HOUSING FINANCE Chair

h COMMISSION

Opening doors to a better life

Steve Walker
Executive Director

RIET RACIAL EQUITY VALUES

EQUITABLE & MEANINGFUL ENGAGEMENT

Ensure that all Black Indigenous People of Color (BIPOC) staff are given the
opportunity to contribute to the Commission’s decision-making process and that
we are fully engaging our BIPOC community stakeholders.

ACCOUNTABILITY

For the Commission to move toward antiracism, each person must acknowledge
and be held accountable for behavior and actions that do not embody RJET’s
Racial Equity Values.

CHALLENGING WHITE SUPREMACY

We must challenge white supremacy by naming it, understanding how it affects
our work and biases, and reversing it through concrete and documented actions.

ACKNOWLEDGING AND ADDRESSING POWER AND PRIVILEGE

Acknowledge that the Commission’s established hierarchies and procedures
contribute to structural racism and actively commit to repairing, addressing, and
eliminating it.

HUMILITY

We demonstrate humility by acknowledging our blind spots, implicit and explicit
biases, and thoughtfully working through conflict with colleagues and partners.

1000 Second Avenue, Suite 2700, Seattle, WA 98104
Tel: 206-464-7139]| 800-767-4663 | Fax: 206-587-5113 | wshfc.org




RESPECT

We respect that BIPOC and non-BIPOC individuals have different truths and
cultural mannerisms; we commit to being patient and allowing space for all to
learn, make mistakes and grow.




Opening doors to a better life

"‘ WASHINGTON STATE
' ‘ HOUSING FINANCE

COMMISSION

2021 Second Round Allocation List

Project Name Sponsor Tax-Exempt Taxable Units City County Priority Points
Nesbit Family Housing Low Income Housing Institute S 18,186,470 S - 104 Seattle King HTF 75
Samma Senior Apartments Imagine Housing S 12,978,441 S - 76 Bothell King HTF 75
Elizabeth Thomas Homes Catholic Housing Services S 25,500,000 S - 119 Seattle King HTF 71
Linden Bellwether Housing S 36,518,000 S 21,514,303 200 Seattle King 82
Watershed Renton GMD Development LLC S 30,000,000 S 13,750,000 145 Renton King 78
Redondo TOD Shelter Resources, Inc. S 68,000,000 S - 334 Federal Way King 77
Grand Street Commons Mount Baker Housing Association $ 33,000,000 $ 10,700,000 206 Seattle King 77
Midvale Village Veterans Village S 37,370,000 S 11,630,000 210 Shoreline King 71
Subtotal $ 261,552,911 $ 57,594,303

Remaining/Not Allocated (alphabetical order)
Project Name Sponsor Tax-Exempt Taxable Units City County Priority
The Lookout MacDonald Ladd Development S 27,828,704 S - 177 Tacoma Pierce
Redondo Heights Senior Liv SHAG S 33,500,000 S - 212 Federal Way King
Subtotal S 61,328,704
Total second round requests S 322,881,615 S 57,594,303

11/9/2021

Final Bond Cap allocations will be subject to adjustment based on amount needed for 50% test




HOUSING FINANCE Stove yearalr
COMMISSION Executive Director

l l WASHINGTON STATE Bill Rumpf

November 16, 2021

Commissioners
Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Seattle, Washington

We have compiled the UNAUDITED statement of Net Position of the Washington State Housing Finance
Commission (the “Commission”) General Operating Fund, as of October 31, 2021 and the related statement of
Activities and Changes in Net Position for the month ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

This compilation is limited to presenting, in the form of financial statements, information that is accurate to the
best of our knowledge and belief. These statements have not been audited or reviewed by an independent third
party.

We have elected to omit substantially all of the disclosures required by generally accepted accounting principles
including the statement of cash flow. If the omitted disclosures were included in the financial statements, they
might influence the users' conclusions about the Commission's financial position, results of operations and
changes in financial position. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who are not
informed about these matters.

Prepared by- Srherbian A/oondn
Shirleen Noonan
General Operations Manager

Approved by Lowvaa L srangen
Lucas Loranger  ~
Semor Controller

1000 Second Avenue, Suite 2700, Seattle, WA 98104-1046
tel 206.464.7139 800.767.HOME fax 206.587.5113 www.wshfc.org "‘
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Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Statement of Net Position
Fund: General Operating Fund
Division: All
October 31, 2021
(See Accountant's Compilation Report)

Variance
Current Year Prior Year Amount %
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Demand Deposits $ 5,630,274 $ 5,551,391 $ 78,883 [6h) 1%
Money Market Accounts 45,571,209 33,005,467 12,565,742 @ 38%
Investment Securities 336,775 8,805,239 (8,468,464) (1) -96%
Interest Receivable 146,765 172,053 (25,288) (20 -15%
Fees Receivables 14,166,082 11,104,318 3,061,764 3 28%
Prepaid Expenses & Other Receivable 309,881 405,754 (95,873) (4) -24%
Furniture and Fixtures (net of depreciation) 225,668 138,950 86,718 G) 62%
Total Assets 66,386,654 59,183,172 7,203,482 12%
Deferred Outflow of Resources (Pension & OPEB
Contributions) * 2,338,037 1,738,698 599,339 34%
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows $ 68,724,691 $ 60,921,870 $ 7,802,821 13%
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities $ 4,251,274 $ 4,340,894 $ (89,620) -2%
Unearned Fee Income 16,504,745 10,725,278 5,779,467 ®) 54%
Accrued Payroll Payable 1,529,160 1,507,535 21,625 1%
Net Pension Liability * 5,906,223 5,869,124 37,099 1%
Total Liabilities 28,191,402 22,442,831 5,748,571 26%
Deferred Inflow of Resources (Change in

Investment Return/Assumptions - Pension &
OPEB) * 2,383,349 2,579,125 (195,776) -8%

NET POSITION

Invested in Capital Assets 225,668 138,950 86,718 5G) 62%
Committed - Housing Washington * 473,047 373,946 99,101 27%
Unrestricted 37,451,225 35,387,018 2,064,207 6%
Total Net Position 38,149,940 35,899,914 2,250,026 6%
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net

Position $ 68,724,691 $ 60,921,870 $ 7,802,821 13%

(1) Fluctuations in these accounts are considered in aggregate, increasing because of net excess revenue year to date.

(2) Lower interest rates in the current year contributed to the decrease in interest receivable. For example, the LGIP rate in the prior year
was .19% as compared with .09% in the current year.

(3) The receivables increase is primarily due to the recording of receivables (and unearned fee income) for the Citibank Securitization
program beginning in June 2021.

(4) Bond cap allocation was received in September 2020, resulting in a higher prepaid allocation fee balance in the prior year.

(5) The increase in net capital assets reflects the capitalization of the Community Build project (automating the external tax credit
application process), offset by the continued depreciation of prior investments in assets.

(6) The increase in unearned fee income is primarily due to the recording of unearned revenue (and receivables) related to the Citibank
Securitization program starting in June 2021 and the 2nd half of tax credit fees for Commission issued 4% bond tax credits beginning in
March 2020.

*  These balances are adjusted only at year-end.

Totals may not add due to rounding.




Revenues:
Fee Income
Interest Earned
Other

Total Unadjusted Revenues

Expenses:

Salaries, Wages, and Employee Benefits

Travel & Conferences
Professional Fees
Office Expense

Total Expenses

Adjustments
Revenues:
Gains/(Loss) on Investments
Grant Revenue
Expenses:
Grant Pass-Through

Total Adjustments
Excess of Revenues over Expenses

Less transfer to Commission Fund *

Excess of Revenues over Expenses (Net of Transfers)

Net Position

Total net position, beginning of period

Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position

Fund: General Operating Fund

Division: All

For The Year To Date Ending: October 31, 2021

(See Accountant's Compilation Report)

Current Increase (Decrease) - to Net

position
Total net position, end of year

Current Year Prior Year Variance

Current Period to Date to Date Amount %
$ 6,500,057 $ 20,324,119 $ 18,842,750 $ 1,481,369 8%
74,144 288,593 320,590 (31,997) () -10%
20,714 58,047 103,214 (45,167) (2 -44%
6,594,915 20,670,759 19,266,555 1,404,204 7%
796,650 3,081,849 3,226,939 (145,090) -4%
3,717 30,862 19,784 11,078 3) 56%
146,087 553,454 458,116 95,338 4) 21%
197,613 753,522 712,992 40,530 6%
1,144,067 4,419,687 4,417,832 1,855 0%
(273,533) (402,279) (158,804) (243,475) 153%
132,744 596,747 754,761 (158,014) -21%
132,744 596,747 754,761 (158,014) -21%
(273,533) (402,279) (158,804) (243,475) 153%
5,177,315 15,848,793 14,689,919 1,158,874 8%
(535,703) (2,220,365) (2,454,400) 234,035 -10%
4,641,612 13,628,428 12,235,519 1,392,909 11%
33,508,328 24,521,512 23,664,395 857,117 4%
4,641,612 13,628,428 12,235,519 1,392,909 11%
$ 38,149,940 $ 38,149,940 $ 35,899,914 $ 2,250,026 6%

(1) The DPP (PRI Liquidity) portion of the interest income is based upon liquidity provided from $40 million at the LGIP rate. The LGIP rate has dropped from .19% in

the prior period to a rate of .09% in the current period.
(2) The decrease in other income is primarily due to fewer number of property transfers in the Compliance division, resulting in reduced fee income.
(3) The increase in travel and conference expenses is primarily due to a greater attendance of the virtual NCSHA fall conference in the current year, as well as, out of state

travel expenses for in person conferences.
(4) The increase in professional fees is primarily due to executive professional search and consulting fees.

*  Effective 1/1/2013, 25% of the Home Advantage Program revenue are transferred to the Single-family bond program’s Commission Fund to ensure future indenture
and program flexibility as the portfolio of MBS’s and bonds diminish.

Totals may not add due to rounding.
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Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Detailed Statement of Activities
Fund: General Operating Fund
Division: All
For The Year To Date Ending: October 31, 2021
(See Accountant's Compilation Report)

Variance-YTD vs. PY Variance-YTD Budget to
Actuals Prior YTD YTD YTD Actual

% « Amount « Actual « Actual » Budget » Amount » % |

Revenues:
Program Fees 159% $ 826,181 $ 5,205,453 $ 6,031,634 $ 5,919,644 $ 111,990 1.9%
Issuance, Application, and Servicing Fees 4.8% 655,189 13,637,297 14,292,486 7,763,910 6,528,576 84.1%
Interest Revenue -10.0% (31,997) 320,590 288,593 163,891 124,702 76.1%
Other Income -43.8% (45,167) 103,214 58,047 156,271 (98,224) -62.9%
Total Unadjusted Revenues 7.3% 1,404,206 19,266,555 20,670,759 14,003,716 6,667,044 47.6%
Expenses:
Salaries & Wages - Staff & Temp. Svcs -2.0% (48,294) 2,425,156 2,376,862 2,753,095 (376,233) -13.7%
Employee Benefits - Staff -12.1% (96,795) 801,782 704,987 780,338 (75,351) -9.7%
Conference, Education & Training 18.7% 3,686 19,704 23,390 30,367 (6,977) -23.0%
Travel out of state - Staff NA 5,358 - 5,358 58,751 (53,393) -90.9%
Travel in state - Staff 2543.8% 2,035 80 2,115 21,579 (19,464) -90.2%
Accounting Fees -15.8% (13,374) 84,573 71,199 71,667 (468) -0.7%
Legal Fees -4.3% (6,749) 155,393 148,644 217,000 (68,356) -31.5%
Financial Advisor Fees 0.0% - 100,000 100,000 109,600 (9,600) -8.8%
Investment Management Fees 4.0% 2,072 52,379 54,451 53,333 1,118 2.1%
Office Rent/Conf. Room Rentals 19.9% 51,171 256,991 308,162 314,095 (5,933) -1.9%
Furniture & Equipment Rental -42.5% (4,130) 9,726 5,596 5,839 (243) -4.2%
Advertising -65.3% (54,402) 83,349 28,947 126,267 (97,320) -77.1%
Publications/ Subscriptions/ Dues 3.9% 983 25,312 26,295 36,321 (10,026) -27.6%
Deliveries 7.9% 94 1,185 1,279 1,262 17 1.3%
Insurance 29.4% 4,244 14,411 18,655 14,271 4,384 30.7%
Meeting Expense -100.0% 1 1) - 32,916 (32,916)  -100.0%
Equipment & Building Maintenance 395.7% 20,197 5,104 25,301 27,144 (1,843) -6.8%
Software Maint. Support & Other Info Svcs 7.4% 18,441 250,062 268,503 302,170 (33,667) -11.1%
Non-capitalized Equipment/Supplies -45.9% (7,112) 15,493 8,381 17,843 (9,462) -53.0%
Postage 8.4% 175 2,095 2,270 2,790 (520) -18.6%
Printing -14.3% (303) 2,118 1,815 8,449 (6,634) -78.5%
State Services 18.8% 367 1,950 2,317 7,606 (5,289) -69.5%
Supplies 62.0% 2,317 3,735 6,052 15,484 (9,432) -60.9%
Telephone 70.2% 9,883 14,086 23,969 20,612 3,357 16.3%
Contract Services 172.4% 113,390 65,770 179,160 292,711 (113,551) -38.8%
Depreciation -5.1% (1,395) 27,375 25,980 39,298 (13,318) -33.9%
Other Misc. Expenses -100.0% 2 (2) - - - NA
Total Expenses 0.0% 1,862 4,417,829 4,419,688 5,360,808 (941,120) -17.6%
Adjustments
Revenues:
Investments Gain (L0ss) 153.3% (243,475) (158,804) (402,279) - (402,279) NA
Grant Revenue -20.9% (158,014) 754,761 596,747 2,369,586 (1,772,839) -714.8%
Expenses:
Grant Pass-Through -20.9% (158,014) 754,761 596,747 2,369,586 (1,772,839) -714.8%
153.3% (243,475) (158,804) (402,279) - (402,279) NA
Excess of Revenues over Expenses- adjusted 7.9% 1,158,869 14,689,922 15,848,792 8,642,908 7,205,885 83.4%
Less transfer to Commission Fund -9.5% 234,035 (2,454,400) (2,220,365) - (2,220,365) NA
Excess of Revenues over Expenses (Net of Transfers) 114%  $ 1,392,905 $ 12,235,522 $ 13,628,427 $ 8,642,908 $ 4,985,520 57.7%

o

Totals may not add due to rounding.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Commissioners
Washington State Housing Finance Commission

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Washington State Housing Finance
Commission, which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the
related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and of cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.




Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Washington State Housing Finance Commission as of June 30, 2020 and
2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter
Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Washington State Housing Finance
Commission adopted a new accounting principle related to conduit debt obligations, which resulted in
removing all conduit debt and related activities from the financial statements and a restatement of the
prior year information presented. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 1214 and the schedules of proportionate share of net
pension liability, schedule of contributions, and schedule of proportionate share of OPEB liability on
page 47 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplemental Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements. The
supplemental schedules of program net position, program revenues, expenses, and changes in
program net position, program cash flows and notes and bonds payable on pages 48 through 53 are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental
schedules of program net position, program revenues, expenses, and changes in program net
position, program cash flows and notes and bonds payable are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Seattle, Washington
, 2021




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Washington State Housing Finance Commission (the Commission, we, or our), we
offer readers of the Commission’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of our
financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2021. This overview and analysis is required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for governmental entities.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
During the fiscal year ended, or as of June 30, 2021 (FY 2021):

Net position increased $117.2 million to $810.5 million primarily due to the $114.4 million increase in net
position of Program-Related Investments (PRI. The increase in the PRI resulted from an excess of
revenues over expenses totaling $79.2 million, mostly from the down payment assistance revenues from
Homeownership’s Home Advantage daily-priced mortgage program (Home Advantage) coupled with the
operating transfer from the General Operating Fund (GOF) of $35.0 million.

During the fiscal year, cash, cash equivalents, and investments increased by $271.9 million due to
proceeds from loans related to the multifamily recycling program ($112.3 million) coupled with PRI fee
revenue and mortgage loan repayments, and other receipts. Mortgage loans increased by $37.0 million
as new loans were issued through PRI. Assets and deferred outflows of resources increased by $205.5
million, largely due to these factors.

Total bonds payable of $565.1 million were outstanding, net of premiums and discounts, $51.1 million
below the prior year balance. This decrease resulted from the net issuance of bonds ($111.9 million) and
the net payment of principal ($163.0 million).

PRI and GOF program fees and grant revenue increased by $16.4 million due primarily to an increase in
program fees associated with Home Advantage as average loan amount increased nearly 10% year over
year. Bond program revenues (mortgage interest, unrealized loss on MBSs, investment earnings and
other) decreased by $37.3 million due to a $35.1 million net decrease in the unrealized gain on MBSs and
decreased interest revenue from a lower balance of MBSs.




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements consist of three parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the financial
statements, and the notes to the financial statements. The basic financial statements include the
statements of net position, the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and the
statements of cash flows. The financial statements are presented in a manner similar to that of a private
business using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

The financial statements report information for all Commission programs and operations. The statements
of net pasition include all Commission assets, liabilities and deferred inflows and outflows of resources.
All revenues and expenses of the Commission are accounted for in the statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position. Program financial statements are presented as supplemental
schedules. These schedules separate the financial statements into General Operating Fund, Program-
Related Investments, and Bond Fund.

Economic Outlook

During the fiscal year, the 10-year Treasury note yield, the benchmark often used to price mortgage rates,
rebounded to 1.45% on June 30, 2021 from its June 30, 2020 rate of 0.66%. The extremely low rate in
2020 was influenced by the market's uncertainty early in the COVID-19 pandemic. Despite the increase in
that yield, average 30-year mortgages rates which typically follow it fell slightly year-over year to about
3.02% from 3.13%. These continued low mortgage rates along with desire for more space by many
people working from home due the pandemic encouraged many first-time homebuyers to enter the
market. A tight supply of single-family homes exacerbated largely by these factors resulted in significant
house price increases, making purchases by the Commission’s low- to moderate-income target
customers more difficult. According to the S&P CoreLogic Case-Schiller U.S. National Home Price Index,
home prices increased 19.7% nationally year-over-year, while Seattle had the third highest increase in
the country, 25%, during the year.

Home loans purchased in the Home Advantage program, which uses traditional, taxable mortgage
funding, were 8,212 down 9.3% from the record number in fiscal year 2020. The dollar value of the loans
purchased was $2.6 billion, down only 0.9% from the prior year due to a higher average loan amount.
We generated $100.0 million in lendable proceeds for our House Key Opportunity program through the
issuance of tax-exempt bonds. The program targets first-time homebuyers in lower-income households,
generally providing a lower interest rate and additional downpayment options.

Demand for the 9% Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) for Multifamily housing continues to
significantly outstrip supply. Therefore, many developers of affordable housing are using the 4% LIHTC
program in conjunction with tax-exempt bonds. That program is constrained by the amount of private-
activity bond volume cap available for such projects and has recently been two to three times
oversubscribed.




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Short-term interest rates represented by 1-month LIBOR, remained at the low level of 0.10% on June 30,
2021, the same as it was the prior year. This index is used to evaluate the cost of variable-rate debt and
correlates to rates earned on short-term investments. The effect of the COVID-19 pandemic has
continued longer than initially anticipated contributing to the ongoing low rates. Based upon indications of
the Federal Reserve Board (the Fed), we believe interest rates will remain at or near historically low levels
for the next few years, although inflation has recently increased above their target for a few months. Any
uptick in short-term rates would increase the carrying cost of the Commission’s unhedged variable-rate
debt in its Single-family program. However, there would be an offsetting increase in the return on the
Commission’s short-term investments effectively creating a natural interest-rate hedge. We do not expect
a significant effect on the Commission’s conduit bond production.




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COMMISSION
Statements of Net Position

The following table summarizes the changes in assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, and net position between June 30, 2021 and 2020, (in millions):

2021 2020 Change
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 497 5 ] 2872 & 2103 T3.2%
Investments 1329 713 61.6 a6.4
Accrued interest receivable 36 36 - -
Fees receivable, net 11.8 6.0 58 6.7
Other receivables 1.8 3.2 (1.4) (43.75)
Maortgage-backed securities, fairvalue a74.3 G81.3 (107.0) (158.7)
Maortgage loans, net 436.6 3996 a7.0 9.3
Prepaid fees and other 0.5 05 - -
Total assets 1,659.0 14527 206.3 142
Deferred outflows of resources 3.5 4.3 (0.8) (18.6)
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources & 11,6625 F 14570 ¥ 2055 14 1%
2021 2020 Change
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities & R, & 60.2 & 177 29 4%
Accrued interest payable 14 1.8 (0.4) (22.2)
Unearned revenue and other 15.2 aT 6.5 747
Derivative instrument - interest rate swap 1.8 28 (1.0} -
Motes payable 187.3 T0.7 116.6 100.0
Bonds and notes payable, net 5651 G16.2 51.1) (8.3)
Total liahilities 8488 TEOA 8a8.3 116
Deferred inflows of resources 3.2 3.2 - -
Met position
Restricted
Bond operations 168.5 166.6 1.9 1.1
Grants and donations to PRI 04 04 - -
Metinvestment in capital assets 0.1 0.1 - -
Unrestricted
General operations 24.0 232 0.a 34
Housing Washington 0.5 04 0.1 25.0
Program-related investments 616.5 5021 114.4 228
Total net position 810.5 £693.3 117.2 16.9
Taotal liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and net position 3 16625 F 14570 $ 20658 14.1%




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COMMISSION (continued)

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments increased by $271.9 million, while MBSs and mortgage loans
outstanding decreased by $70.0 million over the prior year. These are the primary components of an
increase in assets of $205.5 million. The increase in the bonds and notes payable of $65.5 million is due
to an increase of the fully collateralized loan required for the multifamily recycling program, offset by a
decrease in single family bonds outstanding.

The net position of the Commission increased $117.2 from the June 30, 2020 amount. This increase
resulted from the net operating income, before contributions and distributions, across all funds.

The net position of the Bond Fund is classified as restricted because trust indentures direct the use of the
funds. The Commission has designated its remaining net position to a General Operating Fund and to
Program-Related Investments.

The General Operating Fund net position is a reserve to protect the Commission from future uncertainty.
With the reserve in place, the Commission is positioned to meet its future, long-term project monitoring
commitments and to independently meet unforeseen fiscal or legal challenges.

The Commission has also designated a net position for Program-Related Investments. Investments target
strategic, higher-risk programs that support the financing and production of housing for low-income and
special populations as well as facilities used to provide community services primarily to low-income
persons. These investments complement, supplement, and enhance other Commission programs and
have been a catalyst to generate $34.6 million in investments and donations by partners who wish to
support the program purpose. The Commission manages and deploys those funds in addition to its own.




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The following table summarizes the changes in revenues and expenses between 2021 and 2020,
(in millions):

2021 2020 Change
Revenues
Bond programs mortgage interest 5 214 5 23.0 & (1.6) (7.0%)
Bond programs investments and
other income 25 38 (1.3) (34.2)
Bond program gain (loss) on
maortgage-backed securities (10.4) 247 [35.1) (142.1)
Other bond fees 1.1 0.4 07 175.0
Program fees and grants 138.3 118.2 201 17.0
General operating fund interest income 0.2 35 (3.3) (94.3)
Total revenues 5 153.1 5 173.6 5 [(205) (11.8%)
Expenses
Bond programs interest expense 5 18.5 5 19.6 5 (1) (5.6%)
Other bond programs expenses 1.1 1.6 (0.5) (31.3)
Salaries and wages a.a 9.5 (0.7) (7.4)
Other general aperating fund and
pragram-related investments expenses 75 7.4 01 1.4
Total expenses 5 3549 5 381 5 (22) (5.8%)
Return remaining contribution for closed program - (0.1 01 A
Change in net position 5 1172 5 1354 5 (18.2) (13.4%)

The primary components of total revenues for the bond fund are mortgage-related interest earnings and
the unrealized gain on MBSs. Bond interest expense is the primary component of total expense for the
bond fund. Commission revenues in the General Operating and PRI Funds are mostly generated from
issuer fees and the premium generated from Home Advantage mortgage-backed security sales. During
fiscal year 2021, the Commission’s General Operating Fund revenue and expense included $3.7 million
of housing counseling and foreclosure relief funds grants which were passed-through to qualifying
counseling agencies.




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The Commission has long-term debt obligations of $565.1 million, net of bond premium and discounts,
and short-term notes payable of $187.3 million, at June 30, 2021. A trustee or paying agent administers
monetary activities and holds all monies in the Commission’s Bond Fund. They ensure that bond
resolution requirements are met, including payments of debt service and funding of necessary reserves.
At June 30, 2021, amounts held by the trustees and paying agents represent full funding of these
requirements.

Most of the debt of the Commission is tax-exempt, issued under the Internal Revenue Code and Treasury
Regulations. The Federal Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposes an annual cap on the aggregate amount of
federally tax-exempt private activity bonds. Our Single-family Homeownership program relies on private
activity bonds subject to this volume cap. We may also issue taxable debt to supplement our tax-exempt
authority and for lending where program requirements are inconsistent with federal restrictions.

The Commission also issues bonds on behalf of multi-family housing developers and not-for-profit
organizations. However, the bonds issued under these programs meet the definition of conduit debt
obligations for which we have not extended any additional commitments for debt service payments
beyond the collateral and payments received from the underlying mortgages. As of June 30, 2021 such
bonds have an aggregate outstanding principal amount payable of $6.4 billion. Because these bonds are
considered conduit bonds, in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, the Commission does not include the assets, liabilities, and related activities for these
obligations. For additional information see Notes 2 and 6.

The Commissioners have adopted policies that govern the process followed to issue debt. We issue
bonds in the Single-family Homeownership Program to purchase MBSs backed by Federal National
Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae), Government National Mortgage Association (Ginnie Mae), or
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac). These securities carry a credit rating agency
rating equal to that of the United States.

The Commission evaluates and uses available debt management techniques to achieve our goals of
reducing interest expense and preserving the maximum amount of bonding authority in the Single-family
Homeownership Program. In implementing these practices, we often retire higher interest rate debt when
opportunities for economic refunding occur.

The Revised Code of Washington Section 43.180.160 limits the Commission’s outstanding debt to eight
billion dollars. We have no general obligation bonds and do not currently have an issuer credit rating.

Net bonds and notes payable as of June 30, 2021, was $752.4 million, an increase of about $65.5 million
from 2020. Changes enumerated by program are summarized in the following table (in millions):




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

2020 lssued Redeemed Changes 2021
Single-family ! BB43 % 1119  F 1336 % (21.7) % b42 6
Home ownership (NIFB) 51.9 - 294 (29.4) 225
Short-term Motes Payable 0.7 363.6 2470 116.6 16873

) Be6.9  § 4755 5 4100 % Ba.5 B 7h2.4
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Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 WITH 2019
Statements of Net Position

The following table summarizes the changes in combined adjusted net position between June 30, 2020
and 2019, as restated (in millions):

20149
2020 (as restated) Change
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 2872 ] 131.8 $ 1554 117.9%
Investments 71.3 132.3 (61.0) (46.1)
Accrued interest receivable 36 38 (0.3) (7.7
Fees receivable, net 6.0 87 (2.7) (31.0)
Other receivables 3.2 04 23 2056
Mortgage-backed securities, fair value G31.3 G16.1 65.2 10.6
Martgage loans, net 3994 : 3415 581 17.0
Prepaid fees and other 0.5 0.7 (0.2) [28.6)
Total assets 14527 1,23549 216.8 17.5
Deferred outflows of resources 4.3 29 1.4 48.3
Total assets and deferred outflows
of resources F 1457.0 § 12388 §F 2182 17 6%
20149
2020 (as restated) Change
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ G0.1 5 582 5 1.0 1.7%
Accrued interest payable 1.8 1.8 - -
nearned revenue and other a7 91 (0.4) (4.4)
Derivative instrument - interest rate swap 248 1.8 1.1 -
Project equity held for borrower 707 - 707 100.0
Bonds and notes payable, net G16.2 G0G.8 9.4 1.5
Total liabilities T60.4 G78.7 817 12.1
Deferred inflows of resources 3.3 22 1.1 -
Met position
Restricted
Bond operations 166.6 130.5 36.1 27T
Grants and donations to PRI 0.9 1.1 (0.2) (18.2)
Metinvestment in capital assets 01 0.2 (0.1) (50.0)
Unrestricted
General operations 232 225 0y 31
Haousing Washington 04 0.4 - -
Program-related investments 5021 403.2 98.9 245
Total net pasition 693.3 5579 1354 243
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and net position 5 14570 5 12388 5 2182 17.6%




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

COMPARISON OF FISCAL YEAR 2020 WITH 2019 (continued)

The following summarizes the changes in revenues and expenses between fiscal years 2020 and 2019,
as restated (in millions):

2019
2020 (as restated) Change
Revenues
Bond programs mortgage interest $ 23.0 $ 20.5 $ 25 12.2%
Bond programs investments and
other income 3.8 2.6 1.2 46.2
Bond program gain (loss) on
mortgage-backed securities 24.7 18.3 6.4 35.0
Other bond fees 0.4 1.5 (1.2) (73.3)
Program fees and grants 118.2 91.3 26.9 29.5
General operating fund interest income 35 3.9 (0.4) (10.3)
Total revenues $ 1736 $ 1381 $ 355 25.7%
Expenses
Bond programs interest expense $ 19.6 $ 17.4 $ 2.2 12.6%
Other bond programs expenses 1.6 2.5 (0.9) (36.0)
Salaries and wages 9.5 8.7 0.8 9.2
Other general operating fund and
program-related investments expenses 7.4 (0.2) 7.6 (3,800.0)
Total expenses $ 381 $ 28.4 $ 9.7 34.2%
Change in net position $ 1355 $ 109.7 $ 258 23.5%

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the Commission’s total assets increased by $216.8 million
largely attributable to an increase in cash and cash equivalents, net MBSs, and mortgage loans.

The Commission’s $135.5 million increase in net position resulted from the net operating income, before
contributions and distributions of PRI, GOF, and the bond fund.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Please direct questions and inquiries to the Senior Director of Finance or the Senior Controller at

Washington State Housing Finance Commission, 1000 2nd Avenue, Suite 2700, Seattle, Washington
98104, or by telephone at 206-464-7139.
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Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Statements of Net Position

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

June 30,
2021 2020
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS b 497479516 3 287,158,987
INWVESTMENTS
l).5. government and agencies securities - -
Investment agreements 132,941,057 71,347 495
132,941,057 71,347,495
ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE 3,638,791 3,606,393
FEES RECEIVABLE, net 11,762,688 5,998,568
OTHER RECEIVABLES 1,788,020 3,186,571
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES, cost 541,003,456 637,513,468
Cumulative unrealized gain on
mortgage-backed securities 33,312 653 43,765 579
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES, fair value 574,316,109 681,279,047
MORTGAGE LOANS, net 436,579,018 399,552 110
PREPAID FEES AND OTHER 498.719 514,236
TOTAL ASSETS 1,669,023,918 1,452,643,707
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3,452,856 4.294 417
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOURCES b 1.662476,774 3 1.456,938,124

11 See accompanying notes to financial statements. "‘




Washington State Housing Finance Commission

Statements of Net Position (continued)

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

ACCHUED INTEREST PAY ABLE

UNEARNED REVEWUE AND OTHER

DERMNMATIE INSTRUMENT - INTEREST RATE SWAP

MOTES PAYABLE

BONDS PAYABLE
Current interest bonds
Taxable bonds
Unamortized bond premium

TOTAL LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

MET POSITION
Restricted
Bend operations
Grants and donations to program-related
investments
Met investment in capital azsets
Unrestricted
General operations
Housing Washington
Program-related investments

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWWY
OF RESOURCES, AND MET POSITION

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

June 3,

2021 2020
$ 77,880,055 S 60,174,143
1,392,802 1,781,701
15,248,392 8,668,576
1,907,517 2,897 121
187,306,788 70,675,039
498,220,000 541,995,000
56,281,928 54,794,841
10,614,772 9,437,581
565,116,700 616,227 422
848,852,254 760,424,008
3,248 429 3,251,067
168,564,329 166,555,877
809,424 984,384
80,611 139,887
23,967,853 23,150,561
473,047 373,946
616,480,827 502,058,394
810,376,091 693,263,049

S 1,662476,774

S 1.456,938,124




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

REVEMNUES

Interest earned on mortgage loans
and mortgage-backed securities
Other interast and investment income
Unrealized gain {loss) on mortgage-backed securities
Other fee income
Monoperating revenues - grants

EXPENSES

Interest on debt

Amortization of bond premium
Bond issuance costs

Semvicing and commission fees
Salaries and wages
Communication and office expense
Professional fees

Trustee and paying agent fees
Other

Monoperating expenses - grants

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPEMNSES

RETUEN REMAIMIMNG CONTRIBUTION FOR CLOSED PROGRAM

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

MNET POSITION

13

Balance, beginning of year, as restated

Balance, end of year

Years Ended June 30,

2021 2020

P23 14 5 22961823

2,757 571 7,293,346
(10.452,926) 24,764,879
135.733.686 117,113,953

3.696.435 1.473.316
153,125,880 173,607,317

18,518,909 19,619,289

(1.434,908) (767.005)

1.225 829 950,812

1.204.588 1.262.909

8.789.791 9,505,963

2.048.091 2.292 180

1.259 436 1,318,047

99,964 96,030
604,703 2,376,803
3.696.435 1.473.316
36,012,838 38,128,344

117.113,042 135.478.973
- (98.312)

117,113,042 135,350,661

693,263,049 557,662,368

5 810,376,091 § 693,263,049

See accompanying notes to financial statements. "‘

N)




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Statements of Cash Flows

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts for interest on mortgages
Receipts for other fee income
Receipts for loans and mortgage prepayments
FPayments for acquisition of loans and mortgages
Payments for bond program expenses
Payments to employees and suppliers

Met cash from (used for) operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
Interest received on investments

Met cash from {used for) investing activities

MOMCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer of bond proceeds
Return contribution for program closed
Proceeds from sale of bonds and notes
Proceeds from short-term loan
Repayments of collateralized loans
Interest paid on debt
Short-term loans funded
Debt repayments

Met cash from (used for) capital financing activities
INCREASE IN CASH AMND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year

End of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Years Ended June 30,

2021 2020

5 21493556  § 22,701,308
141,022,091 118,056,344
245 051,035 131,733,288
(170,919.301) (231,807.198)
(2.613.176) (2.780.241)

(13.586,504)

(13.763.186)

220,447,701

24 140,315

(1,127.973,031)

(823,689.618)

1,066.379.471 584.675.901
2.773.827 7,952,252
(58,619.733) 68,941,535

i (98.312)

113,835,270 52,993,249
386,008 469 155,953,988

(269,376.720)
(19.021,543)

(162,752.915)

(85,278.949)
(19,608.660)

(71,635.497)

48,692,561 62,325,819
210,320,529 155,407,669
287,158,987 131,751,318

b 497,479,516

b 287,158,987




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

Years Ended June 30,

2021 2020
RECONCILIATION OF EXCESS OF REVEMNUES OVER
EXPENSES TO NET CASH USED FOR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of revenues over expenses B 117,113,042 5 135478973
Adjustments to reconcile excess of revenues over
expenses to net cash from operating activities:
Amartization of mortgage discount (256,743) (203,463)
Amortization of mortgage premium 1,041 36
Amartization of bond premium (1,434,908) (767,005)
Acquisition of mortgage loans (170,919,301) (231,807,198)
Repayments of mortgage loans 245 051,035 131,733,288
Unrealized (gain) loss on securities 10,452,926 (24,764,879)
Cash from changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Interest and other receivables (6,953,278) (2,023,620)
Interest and other payables 27,393,887 16,494 183
Met cash from (used for) operating activities 5 220447701 5 24140 315

15 See accompanying notes to financial statements. "‘




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 — Description of Business

Organization — The Washington State Housing Finance Commission (the Commission, WSHFC, we, or
our) was created in 1983 by the legislature of the State of Washington (the State) to “act as a financial
conduit which, without using public funds or lending the credit of the state or local government, can issue
nonrecourse revenue bonds and participate in federal, state, and local housing programs thereby making
additional funds available at affordable rates to help provide housing throughout the state.” The state
legislature later authorized the Commission to issue bonds to finance or refinance nursing homes and
capital facilities owned and operated by nonprofit corporations, beginning farmers/ranchers, sustainable
energy and energy efficiency retrofit programs. Our debt limit is eight billion dollars.

The Commission has eleven voting members. Two commissioners, the state treasurer and the director of
the Department of Commerce, serve ex officio. The chair of the Commission is appointed by and serves
at the pleasure of the governor. The governor appoints the remaining eight members to four-year terms,
subject to confirmation by the Washington State Senate.

The Commission is legally separate from the State and does not impose a financial burden on, nor accrue
any financial benefit to, the State. Legal restrictions on the Washington State legislature’s ability to
impose its will on the Commission and the inability of the governor to remove the majority of the voting
members of the Commission prevent the State from being considered to be financially accountable for the
Commission. However, in the State’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), the Commission
is presented as a discrete component unit of the State.

Program funds — The Commission summarizes its financial activities in the General Operating Fund,
Program-Related Investments, and Bond Fund.

General Operating Fund — The General Operating Fund accounts for the fiscal activities related to the
administration of our ongoing program responsibilities. Revenues are derived primarily from fees earned
on bond issues, homeownership daily pricing program, housing tax credit allocations, and compliance
monitoring, as well as interest income on General Operating Fund and Program-Related Investments.
Except for certain pass-through grants and loans, all funds we receive are generated by our activities and
are not direct appropriations from the State.

The Commission adopted a General Operating Fund Reserve Policy (“Reserve Policy”) in 1989. General
reserves provide income to fund current operations, help to ensure a sufficient, long-term revenue stream
so we can remain independent of State funds and safeguard our ability to meet future legal and program
obligations. Earnings above the reserve requirements are generally transferred to Program-Related
Investments at the direction of the Commissioners, except for a portion of earnings on the
homeownership daily pricing program which are transferred to the Single-Family Indenture.

Effective June 30, 2019, our Reserve Policy requires that we maintain general reserves of $30 million
based upon capital adequacy analyses, net of the impact of any deferred pension liability as required by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 68 and, effective July 1, 2017, any deferred
other postemployment benefit (OPEB) liability as required by GASB No. 75. Therefore, the reserves
reflect $24.0 million and $23.3 million, respectively, for the years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020.




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 — Description of Business (continued)

Program-Related Investments — The Reserve Policy dedicates the use of reserves above those needed
in the General Operating Fund for Program-Related Investments (the PRI). We strategically invest the
PRI in programs that support our activities such as the financing and production of low-income and
special needs housing and facilities that provide community services. Investments also include resources
provided by other funders for use in established down payment assistance and other programs in which
our missions align. Revenues include interest on these investments and down payment assistance fees
associated with the homeownership daily pricing program.

Bond Fund — A Trust, Funding Agreement, or Financing Agreement dictates the terms of each bond
transaction. We record these activities in the Bond Fund and further separate them by program type as
follows:

Single-Family Homeownership Program — Transactions in this program are from the sale of Single-
family Homeownership Program mortgage revenue bonds, the purchase of mortgage-backed
securities (MBSs) of our pooled loans and the related debt service transactions on the bonds. There
are three program indentures, each of which contains multiple series indentures: the General (Single-
family) Indenture; the Homeownership Bond Program (NIBP) Indenture; and the Special Single Family
Program Indenture. Each indenture is a special obligation of the Commission, payable solely from the
bond funds established pursuant to the indenture. Debt service comes from payments received on the
MBS pools and from any other money held in the trust estate by the bond trustee. Assets of the
indentures are pledged as collateral for the debt and are $673.1 million and $730.7 million as of

June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. We loan proceeds of this program to first-time homebuyers
whose income does not exceed established limits. Mortgage rates for these programs range from
2.00% to 7.45%.

The supplemental schedules of program net position, results of program revenues, expenses, and
changes in program net position, and program cash flows combines the results of the General (Single-
family) and the Special Single Family Program.

Conduit Financing Programs — all other bonds that we issue, are conduit debt, i.e., limited-obligation
bonds issued for the express purpose of providing financing for a specific third party that is not a part
of the financial reporting entity. Bonds are issue for Multifamily Housing, Beginning Farmers/Ranchers,
Energy Efficiency and Non profit Housing and Facilities. Financing proceeds for the Conduit Financing
Programs are used to purchase qualified mortgages or MBSs from mortgage lenders. The issuer of
the MBSs, the mortgagor, the letter of credit provider or the lender will pay the bond trustee principal
and interest in amounts calculated to meet periodic debt service payments on the bonds.

Conduit debt securities bear the name of the Commission. However, we have no obligation for
payment of such debt beyond the resources provided by the loan with the third-party beneficiary.

Underwriters sell bonds in the capital market, or we privately place them with a sophisticated investor
such as a financial institution. However, as of fiscal years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020, all bonds
under these programs meet the accounting standard definition of conduit bonds and, as such, are not
included in our financial statements. Additional information regarding the conduit bonds is included in
Note 6.
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Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Our financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. The GASB is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. We
have applied all applicable GASB pronouncements. The remainder of this note describes our more
significant accounting policies.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting — We use the flow of economic resources measurement
as the focus of our accounting of transactions. With this measurement focus, the statement of net position
reflects all assets, deferred inflows and outflows of resources and all liabilities associated with our
operations. The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for all funds present
increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in our net total position. We use the accrual
basis of accounting, recording revenue when earned and expenses when we incur the liability.

Unclassified statement of net position — Our business cycle is greater than one year. As such, all
assets and liabilities on the statement of net position are shown as unclassified.

Cash and cash equivalents — The Commission considers all highly liquid, interest-bearing instruments
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. While the
cash deposits in the Multifamily Recycling program are held exclusively in the Local Government
Investment Pool, other cash deposits held in the Bond Fund are held in the corporate trust departments of
commercial banks in the bond issue’s name. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, they held $155.1 million and
$143.1 million, respectively, in uncollateralized or uninsured cash equivalents in the bond fund, primarily
in government money market funds. Cash deposits of the General Operating Fund and Program-Related
Investment Funds are covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or by collateral
held in a multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the Washington Public Deposit
Protection Commission (PDPC).

Investments — We categorize investments within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy uses valuation inputs to measure the fair value of the
asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant
other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Investments are reported at
fair value, unless they meet an exception as outlined under accounting standards generally accepted in
the United States of America.

An asset management company manages some of our investments in the General Operating and
Program-Related Investment Funds. Our investments include marketable securities issued or guaranteed
by the U.S. government. We determine and record fair value based on quoted market prices as of

June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Investments in the Bond Fund at June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2020 were short term repurchase
agreements. For additional information regarding investments, see Note 3.




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Mortgage-backed securities — Mortgage-backed securities are presented at their fair value based on
guoted market prices as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Mortgage loans — Mortgage loans are stated at their unpaid principal balance.
Provision for loan losses — The provision for loan losses is estimated for each fund.

General Operating Fund — Most fees in the General Operating Fund are billed and collected in
advance, so no provision for loss is deemed to be necessary.

Program-Related Investments — We estimate losses on our loans in Program-Related Investments
based on its past loan loss experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolio and current economic
conditions. The allowance for loan losses is increased by charges to expense and decreased by
charge-offs (net of recoveries). The loan loss reserve was $13,509,206 and $12,902,133 as of

June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. No provision for loss is made on loan balances funded by
partner investments because the Commission does not guarantee return of those investments.

Bond Fund — We purchase MBSs with the proceeds of non-recourse revenue bonds payable solely
from the assets specifically pledged under the trust indenture for the bonds. No assets of the
Commission, other than those assets held under such trust indentures, are pledged to the payment of
the bonds. We do not reserve for loan loss provisions because the assets held by all the outstanding
Single-family Homeownership Program indentures are MBSs guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Ginnie Mae,
or Freddie Mac.

Other assets — Furniture, fixtures, equipment and leasehold improvements are accounted for in the
General Operating Fund and are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Our
policy is to capitalize assets with a cost of $5,000 or more. Depreciation and amortization are charged to
current operations on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally
between three and ten years. See Note 5 for additional information concerning furniture, fixtures and
equipment.

Unearned revenue — Unearned revenue represents the unearned portion of the Commission’s bond
fees, tax credit reservation fees, and compliance monitoring fees that are received in advance. We record
these fees when earned as other fee income on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position.
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Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interfund transfers and balances for single-family program liquidity management — Interfund
transfers may be completed for short-term program purposes and are considered loans to and from the
impacted funds. At fiscal year-end, we record any balance as an interfund loan in the corresponding fund.

During the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2020, the Commission supported its Home
Advantage program’s Master Servicer by purchasing and holding certain loans for a short time until
pooled into MBSs. Resources used from the Single-Family Program fund and the PRI were in excess of
those needed for program purposes. Balances remaining outstanding are as follows:

Single-family Frogram-related
At June 30, 2021 Bond Program Investments Total
Interfund loans receivable (payable) & (40000000 & 40000000 5 -
Single-family Pragram-related
At June 30, 2020 Bond Program Investments Total
Interfund loans receivable (payable) & (55,000000) & 55000000 5 -

Deferred outflow and inflow of resources — Deferred outflows of resources represent consumption of
resources that are applicable to future reporting periods and deferred inflows of resources represent
acquisition of resources that are applicable to future reporting periods. Deferred outflow of resources
represents the year-end estimated fair value of the Commission’s derivative instruments as of June 30
and the value of pension and OPEB contributions made during the fiscal year, which is after the liability
measurement date. The difference between actuarial projected and actual earnings on pension plan
assets are represented as deferred outflows (inflows) of resources. For additional information regarding
the derivative, see Note 6 and regarding pension liability, OPEB and the related deferred outflows and
inflows of resources, see Note 8.

Pensions — For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, and information about the
fiduciary net position of the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) of the State of Washington
and additions to or deductions from PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same
basis as PERS reports them.

Other postemployment benefits — For purposes of measuring the OPEB Liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources, and expense related to OPEB, and information about any
changes in the liability have been determined on the same basis as reported by the Office of Financial
Management (OFM) of the State of Washington.




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Conduit bonds — Conduit bonds are defined as debt instruments where:

1. The Commission, as the issuer, is joined by an unrelated third-party obligor, and a debt holder or
trustee.

2. The debt obligation is neither a parity bond of the Commission nor is it cross collateralized with other
debt of the Commission.

3. Debt proceeds are intended for and received by a party other than the Commission or the third-party
obligor; and

4. The Commission is not primarily obligated for the debt service payments.

Prior to bond issuance the Commission determines if the bond meets this definition. Bonds issued that
meet the definition of a conduit bond are reportable in note disclosure (see Note 6).

The assets, liabilities and related activities of all other bonds are included in our financial statements.

Bonds payable — Current interest serial and term bonds are stated at their principal amounts
outstanding, net of unamortized bond premium and discount, if any. Certain bonds are variable rate
bonds remarketed on a periodic basis and are subject to market rate fluctuation.

Unamortized bond premium and unamortized bond discount — Unamortized bond premium and
unamortized bond discounts are amortized using the bonds outstanding method.

Bond issuance costs — Bond issuance costs, including underwriter’s fees, are expensed at issuance.

Compensated absences — Permanent employees of the Commission earn annual leave, sick leave and
may earn compensatory leave or exchange time. Annual leave is earned based on length of service, and
an employee may accumulate a maximum of 240 hours. An employee receives compensation for their
unused annual leave upon termination. Employees earn eight hours of sick leave per month. Employees
receive 25% of the value of accrued sick leave upon retirement or death. Non-exempt work period
employees earn compensatory time at the rate of time-and-one-half for more than 40 hours worked in a
week, with a maximum accrual of 240 hours. Employees classified as exempt work period employees
may earn exchange time for actual time worked beyond their work schedule, up to a maximum of 174
hours. Upon separation or transfer to another agency, the employee may use accumulated, authorized
compensatory time to postpone his/her cessation of employment. In consideration of these factors, the
Commission accrues all costs associated with compensated absences and 25% of sick leave, including
an allowance for payroll taxes.

Net position — We classify net position into three components:

Restricted net position has constraints placed on use by external parties such as creditors, grants,
laws or regulations.

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation. We do not
hold any debt related to capital assets.

Unrestricted net position consists of the remaining assets and liabilities.
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Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition — We recognize revenue on an accrual basis. The primary source of our revenue is
fee income generated on our program activities. We earn fees on bond issues, compliance monitoring,
and the sale of MBSs originated in the Home Advantage Program. We record these as fee income on the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and allocate them to the Bond Fund,
General Operating Fund, and Program-Related Investments. Fee income by category for the years ended
June 30:

2021 2020
Commission fees 3 16,757.481 5 15392115
HomeOwnership Program fees 105,210,612 91,747,766
Other program fees 9,741,830 7,961,007
Other income 4,023,763 2,013,065

§ 135,733,686 § 117,113,953

In addition, we earn interest on mortgage loans outstanding, MBSs and other investments.

Income taxes — The Commission, as an instrumentality of the state of Washington, is exempt from
federal and state income taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is necessary.

Arbitrage rebate — We utilize an independent valuation specialist to calculate arbitrage earnings. We
accrue any liability and make required payments to the United States Department of the Treasury.

Use of estimates — The preparation of the statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect amounts reported in the financial statements. We use estimates in determining the allowance for
doubtful accounts, valuation of certain investments, valuation of interest rate swap, arbitrage rebate
liability, loan loss provisions, accrued sick leave and other contingencies. Actual results may differ from
those estimates.

Risks and uncertainties — We are authorized to invest in securities and loans that are exposed to
interest rate, market, credit and/or other risks. It is possible that changes in the values of these assets will
occur in the near term, and those changes could subsequently affect the amounts reported in the
statement of net position.

Adoption of a new accounting pronouncement — In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91,
Conduit Debt Obligations. The statement defines conduit debt obligations and establishes standards for
the reporting and disclosure for issuers. The statement is intended to improve financial reporting by
standardizing presentation of conduit debt by issuers and limits reporting on conduit debt obligations to
note disclosure except where the issuer has made an additional commitment to support debt service
payments and it is more likely than not that the issuer will actually provide any such support. The impact
of this statement requires removal of the Commission’s conduit debt and related activities from the
financial statements, limiting such reporting to note disclosure. Because the Single Family and
Homeownership Bond Programs do not meet the definition of conduit bonds, the debt and related
activities of these programs continue to be included in the financial statements.




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments
General operating and program-related investment funds

Cash and cash equivalents — External entities hold our deposits, exposing them to custodial credit risk,
meaning that if an institution fails, we might lose the funds. We minimize this risk by limiting deposits to
those entirely covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or by collateral held in a
multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the Washington Public Deposit Protection
Commission (PDPC). As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, cash deposits held by the General Operating Fund
met these requirements.

We hold most of our deposits in money market funds or in the Local Government Investment Pool
operated by the State Treasurer pursuant to RCW 43.250 in which we are a voluntary participant. We

report amortized cost on these funds.

Cash and cash equivalents by institution at June 30:

2021 2020
JP Morgan Chase & 2,850247 1.71% § 2465873 3.07%
Local Government Investment Pool 163410882 7 958.16% 7Ea03 840 T 05 86%
All others 223107 0.13% 860,755 1.07%
5166,484 236 100% 580,230,468 100%

Investments

While RCW 43.180.080(5) grants us the authority to invest our funds, it provides no investment guidelines
or restrictions. The State law limits the type and character of investment of “public funds.” Considering our
authorizing legislation, Washington State court decisions, and the sources of our dedicated funds, we find
that the investment limitations on public funds do not apply to us. However, as a matter of policy, we
currently invest our dedicated funds in a manner generally consistent with the investment limitations on
public funds. To minimize our exposure to credit risk, we have adopted an investment policy that limits
investments, summarized as follows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (continued)

The Commission may invest in non-governmental investments, including certificates of deposit, banker’s
acceptances, and repurchase agreements. In addition, the following governmental investments are
eligible;

1. Treasury bills, notes, and other obligations issued by the United States Department of the Treasury
and backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government.

2. Federal Home Loan Bank notes and bonds.
3. Federal Land Bank bonds.

4. Federal National Mortgage Association notes, debentures, and guaranteed certificates of
participation.

5. The obligations of certain government-sponsored entities whose obligations are eligible as collateral
for advances to member banks as determined by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System.

6. Shares of mutual funds with portfolios consisting of only U.S. government bonds or U.S. government
guaranteed bonds issued by federal agencies with average maturities of less than four years.

Investments are managed to this policy through an agreement with Nuveen Asset Management.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that we could not recover the value of our investments or collateral security
if a depository institution or counterparty fails. We manage this risk by prequalifying institutions that we
use to place investments. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, investment securities were registered and held
in our custodian agent’s name.

Credit risk — Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill their
obligations. We manage this risk by limiting investments to those permitted in our investment policies,
diversifying the investment portfolio, and prequalifying the institutions where we place the investments.




Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (continued)

Concentration of credit risk — Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude
of our investment in a single issuer. Our policy limits the investment in any single institution (except for
United States Government Securities) to no more than 20% of the portfolio.

Fair Walue Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in

Az of June 30, 2021 Active Marketzs Significant Other Significant
Total for Identical Obzervable Unocb=servable
Classification/Provider Investment Assets (Level 1)| | Inputs (Level 2} Inputs (Level 3}
US Government and Agency Obligations
US Treasury Motes 5 27241003 3 27241003 5 - 5 -
US Agencies 17,857 424 - 17,857 424 -
Other Municipal Agencies 2,521,566 - 2,521 566 -

Total General and PRI Fund Investments 3 47619593 3 27241003 5 20373590 3 -

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in

Az of June 30, 2020 Active Markets Significant Other Significant
Total for ldentical Ob=servable Unobservable
Classification/Provider Investment Azszets (Level 1) Inputs (Lewel 2} Inputs (Lewvel 3}

US Government and Agency Obligations

US Treazury Motes 3 15,526,461 3 15,525 461 3 - 3 -
US Agencies 15,165,285 - 159,165,289 -
Other Municipal Agencies 2,411,511 - 2,411,511 -

Total General and PRI Fund Investments 3 37,103,261 3 15,525 461 3 21,575,200 3 -

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates over time will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Examining the maturities of our investment securities, listed in the following table, can reveal
information about interest rate risk.

Investments as of June 30, 2021
Maturities (In % ears)

Type Total Less than 1 1-5 =5
US Treazsury Motes g 27,241,003 L3 1,995,505 § 25245403 z -
US Agencies 17,857 424 1,961,388 15,712 678 183,353
Other gowernment securities 2,521,566 166,005 2,355,561 -

Toetal General and PRI Fund Inwestments % 47619953 5 4122 988 I 43313547 -1 183,358

Investments as of June 30, 2020
Maturities (In % ears)

Type Total Less than 1 1-5 =5
US Treazury Motes $ 15,526 4561 3 554 809 $ 145961652 3 -
US Agencies 19,165,289 6,951 418 12,017 401 195 470
Other gowernment securities 2,411,511 154,538 2,256 973 -

Total General and PRI Fund Investments g 37,103,261 - 7,670,765 g 25235026 -1 195,470
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3 — Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (continued)
Investment securities —bond funds

Single-Family Homeownership Program — The Single-family program indentures require that
investments be made with proper regard for the preservation of principal and with maturities that
provide sufficient liquidity to meet obligations. During the fiscal years ending June 30, 2021 and 2020,
investments held in the Single-family program indentures included non-purpose MBSs and short-term
repurchase agreements.

US agencies — During the year, the Commission invests available Single-Family bond fund reserves
by purchasing MBSs originated through its Single-Family Homeownership programs in advance of
issuing bonds. These investments are recorded at fair market value, however no Non-Purpose MBSs
were held at June 30, 2021 or June 30, 2020.

Short-term repurchase agreements — In December 2017, the Commission entered into a Mortgage
Loan purchase and sale agreement (ML Liquidity Repurchase Agreement) with our Master Servicer,
Idaho Housing & Finance Association (IHFA), to provide funds to the Master Servicer to purchase
approved mortgage loans originated under our Home Advantage program. The purpose of this
agreement is to promote the continued success of the program by assuring timely purchase of
qualified mortgage loans. We intend to hold such loans less than 90 days.

Fair Value Measurements Using

CQwoted Prices in Significant Significant
Single Family Bond Program Investments as of June 30, 2021 Active Markets for | other Observable Unobservable
Total |dentical Assets Inputs Inputs
Classification/Provider Investment (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Repurchase Agreements
Idaho Housing Finance Agency $ 85,321 065 5 - 5 - 5 85,321,065
Total Single Family Bond Program Investments $ 85,321 065 ] - 5 - % 85,321,065

Fair Value Measurements Using

CQwoted Prices in Significant Significant
Single Family Bond Program Investments as of June 30, 2020 Active Markets for  Other Observable Unobservable
Total |dentical Assets Inputs Inputs
Classification/Provider Investment (Level 1) (Level 2} (Level 3)
Repurchase Agreements
Idaho Housing Finance Agency 5 34244 234 5 - 5 - 5 34244 234
Total Single Family Bond Program Investments b 34244 234 ] - 5 - b 34 244 234

Multifamily Housing Program — Cash and Cash equivalents of $175.9 million and $63.6 million held at
June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 respectively, consist of funds representing collateral for a line of credit
supporting our Multifamily Recycling program. This collateral is directed by the line of credit agreement to
be held in an account within the Local Government Investment Pool operated by the State Treasurer
pursuant to RCW 43.250.
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Note 4 — Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Commission uses the proceeds of its Single-family Homeownership Program bonds to purchase
mortgage-backed securities. Ginnie Mae, Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac, backed by the full faith and credit
of the U.S. government, guarantee the payment of principal and interest on the MBSs.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the net decrease in fair market value from that of the prior year-
end based upon quoted market prices was $10,452,926 and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the
net increase in fair market value from that of the prior year-end based upon quoted market prices was
$24,764,879. The following table shows the sources of the gains and losses on MBSs on the statements
of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position for 2021 and 2020 by program.

2021 2020
Single Family  Homeownership Single Family ~ Homeownership
Program Program Program Program
Bonds Bonds Total Bonds Bonds Total
MBS, at fair value = § (7,802,552} | 5 (2,560,374)| | § (10,452 926) @ 523500455 % 1,264 424 524 764 879

I 1
Cumulative unrealized gains at June 30, 2021 and 2020, were $33,312,653 and $43,765,579,
respectively, and are included in the balance of MBSs on the statement of net position.

Note 5 — Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Furniture, fixtures and equipment as shown below at June 30, 2021 and 2020, are included in prepaid
fees and other on the statements of net position.

Useful Life Juby 1, 2020 Increazse June 30, 2021

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to 10 years 2 2,080,351 3 27,000 g 2107 351
Leasehold improvements 4 1o 5 years 176,058 - 176,058
Total aszetz 2,255 409 27,000 2,283 409
Less accumulated depreciation (2118 522) (88 277) (2202 7559}
Met book value § 1353887 § (59277) 5 20,610
Useful Life Juby 1, 2015 Increazse June 30, 2020

Furniture, fixtures and egquipment 3to 10 years 2 2004413 s 75,938 2 2,080,351
Leazehold improvements 410 5 years 176,058 - 176,058
Total aszetz 2,180,471 75,938 2,255 409
Lezss accumulated depreciation (1,957 765) (158 758) (2,118 522)
Met book value g 222705 g (B2318) § 135387
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Note 6 — Bonds and Notes Payable

Single-family mortgage revenue bonds issued by the Commission are limited obligations payable solely
from and secured by a pledge of the MBSs (including any insurance payments made with respect
thereto), restricted investments, undisbursed bond proceeds and the earnings thereon held under the
indenture or financing agreement authorizing the bonds.

Default on our single-family mortgage revenue bonds, including failure to provide punctual payment of the
principal amount or any interest installment due, could result in the principal and accrued interest of the
outstanding bonds becoming due in full, providing the Trustee receives written consent of at least 25% of
the bond owners prior to so declaring.

As of June 30, 2021, we had outstanding bonds of $554.5 million bearing interest varying in rates as
listed below:

FYE 2021
Low High
Single-family Frogram 0.03% 4 00%
Homeownership Program 2.45% 5.10%

In addition to the Single-family mortgage revenue bonds the Commission has issued bonds that meet the
definition of conduit debt obligations. The proceeds are used by private sector borrowers for the
acquisition, construction and rehabilitation of affordable multifamily housing and nonprofit facilities. We
have not extended any additional commitments for the debt service payments of the bonds beyond the
collateral and the payments on the underlying mortgage or promissory notes and maintenance of the tax-
exempt status of the conduit debt obligations. As of June 30, 2021, and June 30, 2020, the conduit bonds
have an aggregate outstanding principal amount payable of $6.4 billion and $6.1 billion, respectively,
none of which was recognized as a liability by the Commission.

Municipal Certificates 2021-1 Series A and Series X (the Certificates) of $571,961,262 were issued May
20, 2021 in a Fixed Income Trust to replace a single note-holding beneficiary of several of the
Commission’s multifamily bond transactions (the Bond Transactions) with multiple investors (the
Certificate holders). The Bond Transactions did not change, and borrowers remain obligated to make all
payments under such notes. All assets in each of the Bond Transaction’s trust estate are pledged to and
pass through to the Certificate holders as the full and complete payment of their investment. The Bond
Transactions are included in the Commission’s conduit debt outstanding, however, to prevent duplication,
the Certificates are not again included in the Commission’s conduit debt outstanding.
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Note 6 — Bonds and Notes Payable (continued)
Derivative instruments — interest rate swaps

Single-Family Homeownership Program — The Commission has entered into interest rate swap
agreements (“swaps”) in connection with issuing variable rate mortgage revenue bonds. The swaps are
intended to create debt with synthetic interest rates lower than would have been attainable from long-term
fixed rate bonds to achieve our goal of lending to low- and moderate-income first-time homebuyers at
below market, fixed interest rates. The swaps are hedging derivative instruments. Additional information,
including the fair market value of each swap, is listed below.

Note 6 — Bonds and Notes Payable (continued)
Using rates as of June 30, 2021, debt service requirements of the outstanding variable rate debt and

associated net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain the same for their term, are as
follows. As rates change, variable rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary.

Interest Rate

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Swap, Met Total
2022 3 22,810,000 b 130,934 b 602 807 3 23543741
2023 22,500,000 130,500 607,201 23237711
2024 22,500,000 32,625 151,800 22,684 425
2025 - - - -

The terms and counterparty credit ratings of the outstanding swaps as of June 30, 2021, are shown
below. The notional amounts of the swaps match principal amounts of the associated debt as of June 30,
2021. The notional amounts are expected to approximately follow scheduled or anticipated reductions in
the principal amounts of the associated debt.

Associated Current Current Fixed Swap Counterparty
Bond Motional Principal Effective Rate Rate Fair Termination Credit
Series Amount Anmount Date Paid Received Value Date Rating
2016 VR-1N| § 310,000 S 310,000 Juby 22 2008 3629%  SIFMA plus 10bpz S (5,385) December 1, 2021 Aag
2018 1N-MK 22 500,000 22 500,000 November 28, 2018 2730% |SIFMA (1,902,132} December 1, 2048 AaZ
522 810,000 | 522 310,000 % (1,907 517)

Our swap advisor estimated the fair values presented in the preceding table. They approximate the
termination payments that would have been due had we terminated them as of June 30, 2021. A negative
fair value represents the estimated amount payable by the Commission had we terminated the swaps on
June 30, 2021. The interest rate swaps do not have an observable market; therefore, the fair value
classification is a Level 3 input.

The variable debt maturity for the 2016 VR-1N issue exceeds that of the swaps by a range of 25 to 25.5

years. After the swaps terminate, we may not obtain subsequent interest rate agreements that limit
interest at or below these levels.
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The International Swap Dealers Association Master Agreement is the model for our swap agreements.
They include standard termination events by either party if the other party fails to perform under the terms
of the contract. Upon termination, a payment is due to one party irrespective of causality based upon the
market value of the swap. We have termination risk if we become liable for termination payments to the
counterparty or if we cannot find a replacement to the swaps under favorable financial terms. Our swap
contracts reduce this risk by limiting the counterparty’s ability to terminate due to the following
Commission actions or events: payment defaults, other defaults that remain uncured for 30 days after
notice, bankruptcy, and insolvency.
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Note 6 — Bonds and Notes Payable (continued)

The terms of the swaps expose us to credit risk with the counterparties on a termination event. The swap
agreements contain collateral requirements based upon counterparty credit ratings and the fair value of
the swaps. These bi-lateral requirements are established to mitigate potential credit risk exposure. There
are no collateral requirements as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.

The Commission may incur amortization risk because we may receive prepayments from the mortgage
loans portfolio that cannot be used to call other bonds of the same Series or to cross-call into other
Series. The flexibility of our operating policy and other series of bonds, as well as the use of Planned
Amortization Class (PAC) Bonds for restricted principal payments, minimizes this risk. Additionally, we
may terminate the swaps at market value at any time.

The Commission bears basis risk, the risk that the variable interest payments on our bonds will not equal
the variable interest receipts from our swaps. Basis risk exists because we pay a variable rate on its
bonds based on a weekly remarketing rate or indexed rate provided by the calculation agent, while we
receive a variable rate based upon the weekly SIFMA rate, plus a spread, where applicable, as shown in
the preceding table. Basis risk will vary over time due to inter-market conditions. As of June 30, 2021, the
interest rate on our variable rate debt with swaps was 0.03% (2016 VR-1N) and 0.58% (2018 1N-MM) per
annum while the variable interest rate on the corresponding swaps was 0.03% per annum (SIFMA at
June 30, 2021). We considered the risk when structuring the related bonds and determined it was within
acceptable tolerance levels.

A change in the tax code could fundamentally alter the long-term historical relationship between taxable

and tax-exempt short-term interest rates, changing the Commission’s receipts under its swap contracts.
We determined that it was not economically feasible to transfer this tax risk to the swap counterparties.
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Note 6 — Bonds and Notes Payable (continued)
Bond refunding

The Commission refunds bonds on a current basis. Current refundings result from redemption of the prior
bonds within 90 days of the issuance of the new, refunding bonds. During the fiscal year ended June 30
2021, we refunded two series of bonds reducing debt service by $26.4 million and resulting in an
economic gain of $17.4 million as shown in the following table:

REFUMNDING ISSUE

Diate of Premium and  Effective Reduction in Economic
Fiscal fear lzzue Eond Series Amount Oither Fiate Bond Series Amount Dlebt Service  Gain [Lozs)
oz W0iz0z0 Zingle Family Series 2020 21 39,995 428 2,308 Series 2N 1A-RMM-R ¥ 455,000 £ 12194014 & 93ITER2
Series 2017 14-F 10 1720328
Seriez 2017 2A-Ri20 |00,000
Series 2017 3MIEN-FIZA-R 12,536,260
Series 2013 10 2,735,000
Seriez 2016 14-F 1N 21,035,000
Series 2018 2A-F 2N 126,000
Series 2017 14-F 10 £4,298
20z Bl2Tiz0z Zingle Family Series 2021 1 43,839,784 - 1787 Series 200 1A-RHN-R ¥ 1824 £ 12241923 ¢ 203EH
HFE Series 2003 ACH2INE 13,245,000
Seriez 2013 1A4-RMMN-R 2219
Series ZM41A-RMM-R 133
Series 2015 1A-RAM 1433
Seriez 2016 14-F 1N 395,000
Series 2016 2A-F 2N E,700,000
Series 2017 1A-F 1N 2697360
Seriez 2017 2A-Ri2H 744,258
Series 2017 3MAN-RI2A-R 022177
Series 2013 1h Treave
Series 2013 1M 1,143,323
Seriex 2019 2AM2N 2,568
Seriez 2020 14410 9274

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, we refunded two series of bonds reducing debt service by
$10.3 million and resulting in an economic gain of $5.7 million as shown in the following table:

2020 W2ei2013 Single Family Series 2013 28020 21,234,039 2B30  Series 201014-RHN-R 3 210757 ¢ 4TITA03 F 2574033
Series 2013 1A-RIN-R 207,353
Series 2014 18-RIM-F Eg2,028
Series 2014 28-F 28 20-F 378,953
Series 2015 10-RiN 4,222 628
Series 2016 15-R 1 1137.624
Series 2016 28-F 28 1546061
Series 2007 18-R 1M 798,190
Series 2017 24-Rf2N 616,305
Series 2017 3MN-RIZA-R 729,125
Series 2012 1M 1,598,000
Series 2013 1M 610,000

2020 Si2802020 Single Family Series 2020 144N 21369233 - 2360 Series 201014-RHN-R 3 J082E16 0 ¢ GRIEMO & 313302
Series 2013 18-RHN-R 1,028,480
Series 2014 28-F 2N 2M-F T454914
Series 2015 1A-RHN 004,768
Series 2016 1A-R 1 991,647
Series 2016 28-F 20 1425132
Series 2017 1A-F 1N G404.210
Series 2017 28-RIZN 993,403
Series 2017 3MIBN-RIZA-R 1344722
Series 2013 1M 3,200,000
Series 2013 1M 1,215,000
Series 2013 282N 127,343
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Note 6 — Bonds and Notes Payable (continued)

Future principal and interest payments and bonds outstanding — Bonds mature in varying amounts
through 2051 based on their scheduled terms. However, some may be refinanced or redeemed early. As
of June 30, 2021, future principal and interest requirements are as follows:

Direct Placements All Other Bonds
Fiscal "ear Total Principal Total Interest Total Debt Total Principal Total Interest Total Principal Total Interest
June 30, Redemptions Payments Service Redemptions Payments Redemptions Payments
2022 5 21,000,000 | 5 15,043,747 5 35043747 5 - 5 183,022 5 21,000000 S 14,850,725
2023 19,245 000 14,624 5268 33,869,526 - 183,022 19,245 000 14,441 504
2024 20,845,000 14,233 183 34878183 - 183,022 20,645,000 14,050,181
2025 19,770,000 13,798,805 33,568,805 - 183,022 19,770,000 13,615,783
2028 22,075,000 13,354 917 35,420 917 - 183,022 22,075,000 13,171,895
2027-2031 117,285,000 53,004,138 175,289 188 - 915,108 117,285,000 57,088,078
2032-2038 90,985,000 42 087 235 133,072,235 - 915,108 50,985, 000 41172127
2037-2041 92,963,686 371791 124,686 557 3,818,686 798,181 89,150,000 30,918,750
2042-2045 90,683,242 18,085,934 108,773,226 4,083,242 118,285 85,600,000 17,970,599
2047-2051 55 835,000 3,511,078 63,346 073 - - 59,835 000 3,511,078

- 554501828 8 224485572 5 V75887500 8 7901928 § 3882772 5 548800000 3 220,802,300

Changes in bonds outstanding during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, are summarized in the
following table:

June 30, 2020 lssued Redeemed June 30, 2021
Direct placement 5 10,309,841 % - 3 2407 914 5 7,901,927
All other bonds and notes 596,480,000 110,465,000 160,345,000 546 600 000

$ 606789841 $ 110465000 d 162752914 554 501,927

Warehouse facility

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, we entered into a repurchase agreement with PlainsCapital
Bank to purchase a 100% interest in eligible mortgage loans held by the Commission. This agreement
allows us to access short term funds of up to $40 million, to meet the liquidity needs in support of our
temporary investments in Home Advantage mortgage loans, held in the Single Family program bond
fund. This credit agreement is collateralized by the underlying mortgage loans. Failure of the Commission
to make required payments timely could result in immediate demand for payment, our loss of ownership
of the underlying collateral and suspension of the agreement. Activity and balances for the fiscal years
ending June 30, 2021 and 2020 are summarized in the following table:

FYE 2021 FYE 2020
Beginning Balance ! 7,141,235 ! -
Draws 237,577,486 92,340,184
Principal Repayments (233.274.,513) (B5.198.949)
Ending Balance B 11,444 209 5 7,141,235
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Note 6 — Bonds and Notes Payable (continued)
Line of Credit facility

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the Commission entered into a revolving loan and security
agreement ("Line of Credit") with a private lender. Draws on the line are used to make qualified bond
redemptions and are fully collateralized by bond prepayments received and deposited into a Local
Government Investment Pool account established for this purpose. The line is repaid with proceeds from
new bonds issued in conduit programs using recycled volume cap. An equal amount of monies on deposit
are provided to the new bond borrower. Failure of the Commission to make required payments timely
could result in immediate demand for payment, our loss of ownership of the collateral, loss of the
recyclable volume cap preserved, and suspension of the agreement. Draws made during the year totaled
$126,100,983 while repayments were $13,772,207, leaving a balance outstanding as of June 30, 2021 of
$175,939,267.

Note 7 — Commitments

Mortgage loans — The Commission has committed to purchase mortgage loans to the extent qualified
loans are available under our Single Family programs currently in the acquisition phase. Our
commitments as of June 30, 2021, totaled $63,309,931.

Operating lease — The Commission has a lease commitment for office space on a long-term basis.
Lease expense for the office space for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, was $741,882 and
$743,880, respectively. The Commission’s existing lease commitment expired on June 30, 2021. We
entered a new Commitment on December 9, 2020 for the period covering July 1, 2021 through June 30,
2024, with minimum lease payments due of $910,490

Lines of credit — On April 22, 2013, the Commission agreed to provide Impact Capital, a Community
Development Financial Institution, a revolving liquidity loan, with an amount not to exceed $2 million. We
renewed the agreement in October 2017 increasing the maximum to $5 million. There was no balance
outstanding as of June 30, 2021. The balance outstanding as of June 30, 2020 was $1,000,000

Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans

Deferred compensation plan — The State offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan permits our employees to defer a portion
of their salaries until future years. The State pays the deferred compensation to employees upon
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. We record the funds as salary expense
when paid to the State; therefore, neither an asset nor liability is recorded on our financial statements.
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Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

Retirement (pension) plan — The Commission’s employees participate in the Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) of the State. PERS, established by the legislature in 1947, is a cost-sharing
multiple-employer retirement system. Membership in the system includes elected officials; state
employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals and Superior Courts; employees of legislative
committees; community colleges, college and university employees not in national higher education
retirement programs such as TIAA/CREF; judges of district and municipal courts; noncertified employees
of school districts, and employees of local government. Approximately 50.6% of PERS salaries are from
State employment. Our employees are eligible to participate in Plans 2 and 3. Plan 2 is a defined benefit
plan. Plan 3 includes defined benefit and defined contribution components. Each employee is responsible
for their plan selection.

Commission employees may retire at the age of 65 with five years of service or at age 55 with 20 years of
service. The employee’s retirement benefit is the product of three factors, the PERS plan percentage
(Plan 2, 2%, Plan 3, 1%), average final compensation (the greatest compensation during any consecutive
60-month period) and years of service. Retirement benefits taken before age 65 are actuarially reduced.
A cost-of-living allowance on the benefit is added, based on the Seattle Consumer Price Index, capped at
3% annually. PERS Plans 2 and 3 benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments and a one-time
duty-related death benefit.

A combination of investment earnings and employer and employee contributions finance PERS
retirement. Employee contributions accrue interest at a rate specified by the Department of Retirement
Services (DRS). The DRS-established rate of interest on employee contributions was 5.5%, compounded
quarterly. Retirement benefit provisions are established in State statutes and may be amended only by
the State legislature. An employee can withdraw their total contributions and interest earnings upon their
termination. PERS defined benefits are vested after an employee completes five years of eligible service
for Plan 2 participants. For PERS plan 3 participants, defined benefits are vested after ten years of
eligible service or after five years if twelve months of that service are earned after age 44.

Each biennium the legislature establishes employer and employee contribution rates. The Office of the
State Actuary determines the contribution requirements to fully fund the plan in accordance with chapters
RCW 41.40 and 41.45. All employers are required to contribute at the level established by the legislature.
PERS Plan 1 accepts no new enroliments, and no Commission employees participate in the plan.
However, the employer rate for participants in Plans 2 and 3 includes a component to address the PERS
Plan 1 unfunded, actuarial accrued liability.
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Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

The Commission and employee required contribution rates and amounts to the pension plan for the fiscal
years 2021 and 2020 are:

2021 2020
Rate Amount Rate Amount
Employer contributions
Plan 1 component 485% & 347 220 476% & 341 550
Plan 2 and 3 component 8.10% hG66,864 8.10% 568,293
12.95% | & 914 054 12.86% % 909 843

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
DRS financial statements, which are available from:

Washington State Department of Retirement Systems
PO Box 48380

Olympia, WA 98504-8380

www.drs.wa.gov

The DRS retirement plans are accounted for in pension trust funds using the flow of economic-resources-
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions to each plan are
recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions.
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan.
DRS reports investments held by the plans at fair value. As of the most recent period available, fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020, DRS reports a total net pension liability for Plan 1 of $3.5 billion, and a total net
pension liability for Plan 2 and 3 of $1.3 billion.

At June 30, 2021, the Commission recognized its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities of

Plan 1 and Plans 2 and 3 of $1,646,824 and $820,030 respectively and included them in accounts
payable and other liabilities within the General Operating Fund. The net pension liability was measured as
of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, rolled forward to June 30, 2020. Plan liabilities were rolled
forward using each plan’s normal cost (using the entry-age cost method), assumed interest and actual
benefit payments. The Commission’s proportion of net pension liability was based upon its contributions
in relation to all other employer and non-employer contributions to the plan. The Commission’s
proportions used for measurement of its obligations as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, were:

2021 2020 Change
Plan 1 0.0471% 0.0465% 0.00060%
Plans 2 and 3 0.0613% 0.0600% 0.00130%

The change in Commission proportions was determined to be immaterial, therefore a deferral of the
impact of the change was not recognized.
Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans (continued)
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For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Commission recognized pension expense of $139,530
and $321,290, respectively. For those years, we recognized deferred outflows and inflows of resources

related to pension obligations from the following sources:

As of June 30, 2021

Met difference between projected and actual earnings
an pension plan investments:
Plan 1
Plans 2 and 3

Met difference due to change in assumptions
Plans 2 and 3

Met difference between expected and actual experience
Plans 2 and 3

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Plans 2 and 3

Total

As of June 30, 2020

Met difference between projected and actual earnings
an pension plan investments:
Plan 1
FPlans 2 and 3

Met difference
Plans 2 and 3

Met difference between expected and actual experience
Plans 2 and 3

Contributions subseqguent to the measurement date
Plans 2 and 3

Total

Deferrad Outflows

Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources |1
5 - 5 7,087
- 18,378

- 518,485 [
181 314 -
2897 546 -
5 1,078,860 5 543,950
Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
5 - % 119 565
- 845 167
- 227 136
41,495 -
893,759 -

5 935254 5 1,191 868

The $897,546 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the
Commission’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the

net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021.
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Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows for years ending June 30:

All other Amortization thereafter

2022 b 349,149
2023 73,173
2024 29,514}
2025 (93,576)
2026 28,226
2027 29,041
2028 6,137

5 362,636

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019, actuarial valuation which was rolled forward to June 30,
2020, was determined using the following actuarial assumptions.

Inflation
Economic 275% >
Salary 3.50% »
Investment rate of return 7.40%
Discount rate 7.40%

Mortality rates were based on the Society of Actuaries’ Publication H-2010 mortality rates, and vary by
member status (active, retiree, or survivor). The Office of State Actuary applied age offsets for each
system and recognized future improvements in mortality by applying the long-term MP-2017 generational
improvement scale. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis; meaning, each member is
assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year through his or her lifetime.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method. The Washington State Investment Board (WSIB) used a best estimate of expected future rates
of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation) to develop each
major asset class. Those expected returns make up one component of the WSIB’s Capital Market
Assumptions (CMAs). WSIB uses the CMAs and their target asset allocations to simulate future
investment returns at various future times. The long-term expected rate of return of 7.4% approximately
equals the median of the simulated investment returns over a 50-year time horizon, adjusted to remove or
dampen any short-term changes to WSIB’'s CMAs that aren’t expected over the entire 50-year
measurement period.

Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans (continued)
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class (as of

PERS year-end June 30, 2020), including an inflation component of 2.20%, are summarized in the
38 "‘l

following table:
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% Long-Term
Target Expected Rate
Asset Class Allocation of Return
Fixed Income 20% 2.20%
Tangible Assets 7% 5.10%
Real Estate 18% 5.80%
Global Equity 32% 6.30%
Private Equity 23% 9.30%

100%

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.40%. The rate was determined by
completing an asset sufficiency test on whether the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was sufficient to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.

Consistent with current law, the asset sufficiency test included an assumed 7.40% long-term discount rate
to determine funding liabilities for calculation of future contribution rate requirements. Consistent with the
long-term expected rate of return, a 7.40% future investment rate of return on investment assets was
assumed for the test. Contributions from plan members and employers are assumed to continue at
contractually required rates. Based upon those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of 7.40% was used to determine the total liability.

The following presents the Commission’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 7.40% as well as what the proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.40%) or one percentage point
higher (8.40%) than the current rate:

Discount Rate Sensitivity

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
r (6.4%) r (7.4%) r (8.4%)
Plan 1 5 2,082 857 5 1,646,824 & 1,296,625 .
Plan 2 and 3 5 4,878,208 5 820,030 & (2,587597):
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Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans (continued)
Other postemployment bengfit plan

Commission employees are eligible to participate in the single employer defined benefit other
postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan administered by the State Health Care Authority (HCA). The plan,
as authorized through RCW 41.05.065, is designed by the Public Employee Benefits Board (PEBB),
created within HCA, and determines the terms and conditions of employee and retired employee
participation and coverage, including eligibility criteria. The PEBB OPEB plan benefits are provided in
accordance with a substantive plan rather than a formalized contract or plan document and, as such, rely
on communication of the plan terms by HCA with employers and plan members as well as the historical
practice of plan cost sharing by employers.

The PEBB OPEB plan is funded by monthly contributions with amounts established by the Legislature as
a part of the biennium budget process. For both the 2020 and 2019 fiscal years this monthly amount was
$168 per employee. There are no plan assets, rather the monthly contributions are used to pay for current
benefits provided. The plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.

The PEBB retiree OPEB plan is available to employees eligible for retirement electing to continue
coverage and pay the administratively established health insurance premiums at the time they retire
under the provisions of the retirement plan to which they belong.

Per RCW 41.05.022, retirees who are not yet eligible for Medicare benefits may continue participation in
the state’s non-Medicare community-rated health insurance risk pool on a self-pay basis. Retirees in this
risk pool receive an implicit subsidy because the retired members pay a premium based on the claims
experience for active employees and other non-Medicare retirees. The subsidy is valued using the
difference between the age-based claims costs and the premium.

Retirees who are enrolled in both Parts A and B of Medicare may participate in the state’s Medicare
community-rated health insurance risk pool. Medicare retirees receive an explicit subsidy from the
reduced premiums. The explicit subsidy is established through an annual recommendation by the HCA
administrator which is included in the Governor’s budget with the final amount approved by the state
Legislature. In calendar year 2020, the explicit subsidy was up to $183 per enrollee member per month
and will remain at $183 in calendar year 2021.

OPEB implicit and explicit subsidies as well as administrative costs are funded by the required
contributions participating employers make. The Commission is required to make monthly contributions
on behalf of all active, health care eligible employees (headcount), regardless of enrollment status. The
allocation method used by the state to determine our proportionate share of the OPEB related liabilities,
deferred inflows, deferred outflows, and expense is the percentage of our headcount as a percentage of
the state’s total headcount.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

This same method is used to determine the transactions subsequent to the measurement date,
specifically the retiree portion of premium payments made by agencies on behalf of active, health care
eligible employees between the measurement date of June 30, 2020, and the reporting date of June 30,
2021. The portion of health care premiums attributed to retirees for both explicit and implicit subsidies is
taken from the Fiscal Year 2021 4th Quarter Update in the PEBB Financial Projection Model (PFPM) from
the State Health Care Authority.

Additional information will be included in the Washington State 2021 Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report on OFM’s website (www.ofm.wa.gov/accounting/financial-audit-reports/comprehensive-annual-
financial-report). Additional information on health care trend rates and other actuarial date is available on
the Office of the State Actuary’s website (leg.wa.gov/osa).

For fiscal years ending June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020, HCA reports total OPEB liability of $6.1 billion
and $5.8 billion, respectively. At June 30, 2021, the Commission recognized its proportionate share of the
OPEB liability of $3,439,368, which is included in accounts payable and other liabilities within the General
Operating Fund. The OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total liability used to
calculate the OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. The
Commission’s proportion was based upon our headcount in relation to the headcount of all state
employees at the same date resulting in allocations of 0.0568% and 0.0598% used for the measurement
of its obligations as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, a decrease between years of 0.003%. The impact of this
change is included in the related deferred inflows and outflows of resources and amortized over nine
years, which is equal to the average expected remaining service lives of all active and inactive members.

As of June 30, 2021, components of the change in of our proportionate share of the total OPEB liability
are as follows:

Beginning OPEB Liability B 3,473,340
Change in proportionate Share (176,730)
Senice cost 142724
Interest cost 119,390
Differences between expected and actual experience (18.295)
Changes in assumptions 77,392
Changes of benefit terms -
Benefit payments (56,844)
Other (121.608)
Ending OPEB Liability b 3,439 369
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Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Commission recognized OPEB expense of $22,934

and $156,022, respectively. For those years recognized deferred outflows and inflows of resources

related to the net OPEB liability from the following sources:

As of June 30, 2021

Changes in assumptions

Changes in experience

Changes in proportion

Transactions subsequent to the measurement date

Tuotal

As of June 30, 2020

Changes in assumptions

Changes in experience

Changes in proportion

Transactions subsequent to the measurement date

Taotal

The $60,496 reported as deferred outflows resulting from transactions subsequent to the measurement

Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
5 236,503 5 311,145
75,454 16,263
94 026 219,293
60,496 -
5 466 4749 5 1,046,701

Deferred Outflows

Ceferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
5 201,944 5 1,007,071
92749 -
107 458 358,784
50891 -
& 462 042 & 1,045 855

date will be recognized as a reduction in the OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2021.

Other amounts reported as deferred inflows and deferred outlfows of resources will be recognized as

OPEB expense in subsequent years as follows:
Amortization of Deferred Inflow of Resources

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

(117 573)
(117.573)
(117 573)
(117.573)
(117.577)

(52.849)

§  (540.718)
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Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2020, was determined using the following actuarial assumptions.

Inflation
Economic 2.75%
Salary 3.60%

(Salaries are also expected to grow by
promotions and longevity)

Health care trend rates
Initial rate(s) 2.3% -11.0%
Expected by 2080 4.30%

Mortality rates were based on the Society of Actuaries’ Publication H-2010 mortality rates, and vary by
member status (active, retiree, or survivor). The Office of State Actuary applied age offsets for each
system and recognized future improvements in mortality by applying the long-term MP-2017 generational
improvement scale. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis; meaning, each member is
assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year through his or her lifetime.

Most demographic actuarial assumptions, including mortality and when members are expected to
terminate and retire, were based upon the results of the 2013-2018 Demographic Experience Study
Report. The post-retirement participation percentages and percentage with spouse coverage were
reviewed in 2017. Economic assumptions, including inflation and salary increases, were based on the
results of the 2019 Report on Financial Condition and Economic Experience Study.

Because the OPEB benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the discount rate used to measure the
OPERB liability was set equal to the Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which
was 2.21% for the June 30, 2020, measurement date.

The following represents the Commission’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability calculated using the
discount rate of 2.21% as well as what the proportionate share of the OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (1.21%) or one percentage point
higher (3.21%) than the current rate:

Discount Rate Sensitivity

1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase
d (1.21%) d (2.21%) T (3.21%)
5 4 164 227 3 3.439, 369 5 2,874,962
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Note 8 — Employee Benefit Plans (continued)

The table below represents the Commission’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability calculated using
the health care trend rates range of 2-11% percent reaching an ultimate range of 4.3%, as well as what
our proportionate share of the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using health care trend
rates that were one percentage point lower (1-10%) or one percentage point higher (3-12%) than the
current rate:

Health Care Cost Trend Sensitivity
1% Decrease Current Discount Rate 1% Increase

B 2,802,720 B 3,439,369 ] 4,292 912

Note 9 — Risk Management

The Commission is subject to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters and acts of terrorism for which we carry commercial
insurance. As of June 30, 2021, there were no known asserted or unasserted claims or judgments
against the Commission.

The Commission may be subject to various threatened or pending legal actions, contingencies, and
commitments in the normal course of conducting its business. We provide for costs or income related to a
settlement of these matters when a loss or gain is probable, and the amount can be reasonably
estimated. The effect of the outcome of these matters on our future results of operations and liquidity is
not predictable because any such effect depends on future results of operations and the amount and
timing of the resolution of any such matters. However, we believe that the ultimate resolution of any such
matters will not have a material adverse or beneficial effect on our financial position.

Note 10 — Related Party Transactions

The Commission provides staff and administrative services to the following state agencies for the years
ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

Charges for Senvices 2021 2020
Washington Higher Education Facilities Authority B 304,420 b 298,433
Tobacco Settlement Authority 40,559 37,030

Receivable From

Washington Higher Education Facilities Authority ! 79,396 ;! 75,226
Tobacco Settlement Authority 8,503 20,068
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Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

=)

LAN 1

WSHFC’s portion of net pension liability
WSHFC’s proportionate share of the net pension liability

2021 2020 2018 2018

0.0471% 0.0455% 0.0462% 0.0455%

5 1545324 5 1790318 & 2052105 S 2,188,328

WSHFC's covered employee payroll NIA (1Y NIA NIA
WSHFC's proporticnate share of the net pension liability as a

percentage of its covered emplovee payroll NIA (1Y NIA NIA
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 58.54% 67.12% 63.22% 51.24%
PLAN 2 and 3
WS3HFC's portion of net pension liability 0.05813% 0.0800% 0.05%4% 0.0585%
WSHFC's proportionate share of the net pensien liability 820,030 5 604968 5 1,023,732 g 2,030,714

WSHFC's covered employee payroll § 7175419 % 6,526,559 g 6,157,091 § 5762602
WEHFC's proportionate share of the net pensien liabilty az a

percentage of its covered employee payroll 11.43% 9.27% 16.63% 35.24%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 97 22% 57.77% 95.77% 50.97%

Schedule of Contributions

PLAN 1

Statuterily-reguired contributions

2021 2020 2019 2018

341322 5 333507 S 309085 5 273962

Contributions related to the statutorily-reguired contributions 341,322 333,507 309 065 273,962
Contribution (deficiency) excess - ] - ] - 3 -
WSHFC's covered-employee payrol NIA NIA (1Y NIA
Contribution as a percentage of covered-emplovee payroll NIA NIA (1Y NIA

PLAN 2 and 3

Statuteriby-reguired contributions

565120 5 480407 5 458084 § 357882

Contributions in related to the statutoriby-required contributions 565 120 450 407 453 084 357 892
Contribution (deficiency) excess - -] - 3 - 3 -
WSHFC's covered-employee payroll 7,175,415 6,526,599 6,157,081 6,157 091

Centribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 7.88% 7.51% T.44% 5.21%

Plan 1 — No Commission employees are eligible for FERS 1. Commission contributions are required

in order to address the PERS 1 unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Therefore, covered
payroll and contributions as & percentage of covered payroll is not applicable to FPlan 1.

Schedule of Proportionate Share of OPEB Liability
Schedule of Proportionate Share of OPEB Liability

2021 2020 201% 2018
WSHFC's pertion of OPEB Liability 0.05580% 0.05885% 0.05805% 0.05840%
WSHFC's proportienate share of the OPEB liability $ 3,439,369 5 3473340 g 2845312 5 3399762
WSHFC covered employee payroll 5 7175419 5 6526599 $ 615700 5 5762602
WSHFC's proporticnate share of the net OPEB liability as a

percentage of its covered employee payroll 47 53% 5322% 47 83% 55.00%

2021 2020 201% 2018
Statutoribv-reguired contributions £ 161,040 2 142176 £ 132450 £ 130800
Contributions related to the statutorily-reguired contributions 161,040 148178 132,450 130,800
Contribution (deficiency) excess -] - £ - -] - ] -
WSHFC's covered-employvee pavrol g 7175419 % 6526599 % 6,157,091 % 5,782602
Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 2.24% 227T% 2.15% 227%
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Schedule of Program Net Position

Restricted Bond Fund

Homeownership T uilkif zmily General
ASSETS AND DEFERRED Single—family Bond Program Heowsing Program-Related Operating June 30,
DOUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES Bond Program IMIEF] Bond Program Investments Fund 2041 ¥ 2020
CASHAND CASHEQUINMALENTS ¥ 151636835 % 3333380 # 175835405 # 133053210 ¢ 3343026 % 437473516 ¢ 257158357
INVESTMENTS
LS. government and agencies securities - - - 42,823,248 4,730,744 47,613,932 -
Inwestment agreements and
ather investments 80,321,065 5,000,000 - - - 55,321,065 71.347.435
80,321,065 5,000,000 - 42,829,245 4,730,744 132,941,057 71.347.495
ACCRUED INTEREST RECEMABLE 1627.505 135137 - 1715604 157545 3.635.71 3,606,393
FEES RECEIVAEBLE, et - - 1.7582.655 1,752 655 5,995,565
OTHER RECEINVABLES 1710937 - - TT.0E3 - 1,788,020 318657
INTERFUMD LOANS (d0,000,000) - - 40,000,000 - - -
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES. cost 515,092 462 25,910,334 - - - 541,003 456 637,513,468
Cumulative unrealized gainon
mortgage-backed securities 31.211.885 2.100,765 - - - 33.312.653 43,765,579
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES,
fair value 546,304,350 28,011,759 - - 574,316,103 651.279.047
MORTGAGE LOANS, net - - - 436,573,018 - 436,573,018 393,552,110
PREPAIDFEES AMD OTHER - - - - 455,713 435,713 514,236
TOTAL ASSETS 741,660,752 36,546,576 175,898 405 654,257,163 50,660,722 1.653.0235.915 1452 643,707
DEFERRED OUTFLOW'S OF RESOURCES 1,307,517 - - - 1,545,333 3,452,856 4,234 417
TOTAL ASSETS AMD DEFERRED
OUTFLOW'S OF RESOURCES $ T435B0263 ¥  GES4EEVE  #  TVDBS5405 # BS4ELVES ¢ 52206051 # 1662476774 ¢ 1456935124
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Schedule of Program Net Position (continued)

Restricted Bond Fund

Homeownership Muttifamiby General
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS Single-famiky Bond Program Housing Program-Related Operating June 30,
OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION Bond Program (NIBP) Bond Program Investments Fund 2021 2020
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER
LIABILITIES $ 30067246 S 390 | S - % 35966912 & 10845507 S 77,280,055 £ 60,174,149 »
ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE 1,298,221 58,756 35,825 - - 1,382,802 1,781,701 3
UNEARNED-REVENUE AND OTHER - - - - 15,248,392 15,248,382 8668576

DERNATIVE INSTRUMENT - INTEREST
RATE SWAP 1,807,517 - - - - 1,807 517 2,887 121

NOTES PAYABLE | 11,444,208 .I - 175,862,580 - - 187,306,788 70,675,038

BONDS PAYABLE

Current interest bonds 457 820,000 300,000 - - - 488,220,000 541,885,000 »
Taxable bonds 34,083,242 22,158 686 - - - 56,281,528 54754 341
Unamertized bond premium 10,514,772 - - - - 10,614,772 5,437 581 >
542,618,014 22,498,686 - - - 565,116,700 616,227 422 o
TOTAL LIABILITIES 587,335,206 22,557,832 175,898,405 36,966,912 26,093,859 843,852,254 760,424,008
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1857778 - - - 1,580,651 3,248,42% 3,251,067
NET POSITION
Restricted
Bond operations 154,575,285 13,989,044 - - - 168,564,328 166,555,877
Grants and donations te program-
related investments - - - 809,424 - 809 424 934,384
Net investment in capital assets - - - - 20,611 20,611 139,887
Unrestricted
General operations - - - - 23 967,853 23,967 853 23,150,561
Housing Washingten - - - - 473,047 473,047 373,946
Program-related investments - - - 616,480 827 - 616,480 827 502,058,304
154,575,285 13,989,044 - 617,280,251 24 521,511 810,376,081 693,263,049

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOW OF
AND NET POSITION § 743568265 3 36546676 § 175858405 | § 654257163 5 52,206,061 51,662,476, 774 51456935124




Washington State Housing Finance Commission

Schedule of Program Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Program Net Position

Resztricted Bond Fund
Haomeownership Multifamily General
Single—family EBond Program Howsing Program-Felated Operating ‘Years Ended June 30,
Bond Program [MIEF) Biond Program Investments Fund 2021 2020
REWEMUES
Interest earmed on montgage loans and
mongage-backed securities k3 13523815 ¢  1867.293 % - % - % - % 239114 % 22961523
Oither interest and investment income (lass) 2163653 171,153 186,251 - 230,434 2.757.5T1 T.233,346
Gain (loss) on martgage-backed securities [7.8392.552) [2,560,374) - - - [10,452,326) 24,764,873
Oither fee income 352521 1258107 - 73,754,543 54,837,515 135.733.686 117,113,953
Monoperating reverues - grants - - - - - - 1473516
14,785,457 (332,815 186,281 79.754.543 55.067.933 143.4239.445 173607317
EXPEMSES
Interest an debt 16.972.020 1367455 173,434 - - 18.515.303 19,619,253
Amaortization of bond premium [1.355.103) [79.505) - - - (1.434.308] [767.005)
Biond issuance costs 1.225.823 - - - - 1.225.823 330,512
Servicing and commission fees 1075481 123107 - - - 1.204.555 1.262.303
Salaries and wages - - - - 8,783,731 8,783,731 3,505,363
Communication and office expense - - - - 2.043,031 2,045,031 2,232,150
Prafessional fees - - G647 - 1.2592.583 1.253,436 138,047
Trustee and paving agent fees 55,070 14,534 - - - 93,364 96,030
Cither 44,160 - - SE0.543 - 604,703 2,376,803
MNonoperating expenses - grants - - - - - 1473316
156,047,457 1.431.651 186,281 SE0.543 12.030.471 32,316,403 38,128,344
EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVERUES OWER EXPEN [3.264.0200 (1,624,466) - T3.224.000 42,377,528 7. 13,042 135,475,973
RETURM REMAIMING CONMTRIEUTION
FOR CLOSED PROGRAM - - - - - - [35,312)
CHANGE INMNET POSITION [3.264,020) [1.524 468) - 73,224,000 42 377,528 17,115,042 135,380,661
MET POSITION
Balance, beginning of vear 146,808,294 13,747 583 - E03,042,778 23,664,394 £93,263,049 B5T882,388
Cantribution (distibution] of quity 11,031.0M1 (3.934,073) - 35,023,473 (42,120,411 - -
Balance, end of year ¥ 194575285 % 13983044 % - % BIT230.251 % 2452151 % 510376031 _#633.263.043
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Schedule of Program Cash Flows

Restricted Bond Fund

Single-family Muttifamity
Housing Homeownership Housing General
Bond Bond Program Bond Program-Related Operating “ear Ended
Program (NIBP) Program Investments Fund June 30, 2021
OPERATING ACTIWVITIES
Receipts for interest on mortgages £ 19530938 & 1962568 | S - 5 - 2 - & 21493558
Receipts for other fee income 1,111,521 125107 - 79647 254 50,134,169 141,022 081
Receipts for loans and mortgage prepayments 134,864 524 13,923,339 - 95,262,812 - 245,051,035
Payments for acguisition of loans and mortgages (52,022 509) - - (118,896, 792) - (170,915,301)
Payments for bond program expenses (2,469 010) (144 168) - - - (2,613,178)
Payments to employees and suppliers - - (6,847 ) 1,545 441 (15,129,0588) (13,585 504)
MNet cash from (used for) operating activities, 101,015 874 15,870 848 (5,847) 58,562 755 45,005,071 220,447 701
INVESTING ACTVITIES
Purchase of investments (1,117,385,815) - - (10,588,218) - (1,127,873,031)
Sale of investments 1,066,309 985 - - - 60 435 1,088,375,4T1
Interest received on investments 2,131,271 155 665 186,281 - 289,610 2773827
MNet cash from (used for) investing activities (48 545 555) 156 665 185,281 (10,585, 2186) 369,096 (58,819,733}
NONCAPTAL FINANCING ACTIWITIES
Proceeds from sale of bonds and notes 113,835,270 - - - - 113,835,270
Proceeds from collateralized loans 237,577 485 - 148,430 583 - - 386,008 469
Repayments of collateralized loans (233,274,513) - (36,102 207) - - (269,378,720}
Short term loan provided to other fund - - - - - -
Interest paid on debt (17,222,673) (1,578,574) (220,296) - - (19,021,543)
Debt repayments (133,585,809) (29,167,108) - - - (162,752,915)
Transfer of bond proceeds (13,845,000} 13,845,000 - - - -
Centributions 7,006,938 - - 35023473 (42120411) -
Met cash from (used for) noncapital
financing activities (39,418 301) (16,900 580} 112,108 480 35023473 (42120 411} 43 692 551
MET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUNALENTS 12,852,014 (873,167} 112,287,914 83,000,012 3,253,756 210,320,528
CASH AND CASH EQUIMALENTS
Beginning of year 139 044,831 4,273 147 63,610,491 50,053,198 30,177,270 287,158,887

End of year $ 151606885 & 3,380880 8§ 175888405 §F 133053210 § 33431026 5 497475518




Washington State Housing Finance Commission

Schedule of Program Cash Flows (continued)

Restricted Bond Fund

Single-famity Homeownership Multifamity General
Housing Bond Program Housing Program-Related Operating “ear Ended
Bond Program (MNIBP} Bond Program Investments Fund June 30, 2021
RECONCILIATION OF EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENSES TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTNITIES
Excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses $  (3,264,020) 3 (1,824468) S - % 79224000 $ 42977528 g 117,113,042
Adjustments to reconcile excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenses to net cash
from operating activities
Amertization of mortgage dizcount (256,743) - - - - (256,743)
Amertization of mortgage premium 1,041 - - - - 1,041
Amertization of bond premium (1,355,103} (79,805) - - - (1,434,808)
Acqguisition of mortgage loans (52,022 509) - - (118,8598,752) - (170,915,301}
Repayments of mortgage loans 134,854,884 13,923,339 - 95,262,812 - 245,051,035
Unrealized (gain) loss on securities 7,892 552 2,560,374 - - - 10,452,926
Cash from changes in operating assets and liabilties
Interest and other receivables (1,777,777} (75,884) (185,281) 459,823 (5,383,159} (6,953,278)
Interest and other payables 16,933,549 1,367 2580 178,434 1,802,812 7410702 27,383,887
Net cash from (used for) operating activites  $ 101,015874 § 15870848 § (6,847) 5 58552755 § 45005071 S 220447701
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Washington State Housing Finance Commission
Schedule of Notes and Bonds Payable
Year Ended June 30, 2021 with Comparative Totals for 2020

Final
lzzue Original WMaturity Balance Qutstanding
Series Date Amount Date SI302021 BI302020
Single-family (Open Indenture)
Single-family Series 2013 1A-RMN-R 272013 62,515,000 6/1/2043 21,325,000 23 445 000
Single-family Series 2014 14-RAN-R 142802014 35,700,000 6/1/2043 285,000 1,310,000
Single family Series 2014 24-F 2H 2N-R 121802014 50,515,000 612044 8,675,000 11,765,000
Single-family Series 2015 1A-RMN 12102015 63,845 000 6112038 22 840,000 27,105,000
Single family Series 2016 14-F 1N WRE-1N 542612016 85,500,000 12112045 38,480,000 43,330,000
Single family Series 2016 24-R 2N 1143042018 67,045 000 12112045 40,315,000 51,455 000
Single family Series 2017 14-R 1N 4272017 67,370,000 1212047 37,555,000 45 455 000
Single family Series 2017 2A-F/2N SY28/2017 35,230,000 6/1,/2047 15,340,000 30,315,000
Single family Series 2017 3N/3N-R34A-R 1202802017 70,475,000 1212047 25,725,000 85 280,000
Single family Series 2018 1N/ N-MK 1082018 58,150,000 12172048 75,145,000 52 625 000
Single Family Series 2019 1N 2002019 78,210,000 6/1/2045 47 720,000 76,385, 000
Single Family Series 2019 242N 11/28/2015 38,535,000 12M/2045 37,035,000 38,335,000
Single Family Series 2020 141N 52812020 41,785,000 61,2050 40,775,000 41,755, 000
Single Family Series 2020 2N 11430042020 38,835,000 12172050 38,675,000 -
Single Family Series 2021 1N SE2TIZ021 71,630,000 12172045 71,630,000 -
Special Single famihy 10802012 25,171,376 10//2042 4 083242 5,444 050
532,003,242 555,124 050
Unamertized Bond Premium 10514772 5,188 454
g 542518014 & 584 312 504
Homeownership Program Bonds
HPB 09 Series AC1/2010 Series A - NBIP G425/2010 | 100,000,000 10072041 - 855,000
Homeownership Program Bonds 09 ACZ2HM1 A 242011 55 550,000 104172041 300,000 2,430,000
Homeownership Program Bonds 09 AC3/11 B SU2e2011) 118,440,000 104172041 - 18,580,000
Homeownership Program Bonds 20134 103002013 23,575,203 2040 3,818,686 4 855,791
Homeownership Program Bond=2015 AB 542812015 9 370,000 511541 18,380,000 24 485 000
22 458 686 51,665,791
Unamertized Bond Premium - 245 127

S 22498886 5 51914918
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